
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 13 September 
2017 

5.30 pm 
Committee Rooms 1-2, City 

Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Jim Hanrahan (Chair), Peter West (Vice-Chair), 
Biff Bean, Kathleen Brothwell, Bob Bushell, Paul Gowen, 
Gary Hewson, Ronald Hills, Tony Speakman, Edmund Strengiel 
and Naomi Tweddle 
 

Substitute members: 
 

Councillors Jackie Kirk and Neil Murray 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Emma Brownless, Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron 
Manning and Paul Thompson 
 

 
The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented 
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda. 
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to 
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the 
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant 
information. 
 
Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved, 
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as 
part of the process. 
 
Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the 
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have 
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the 
table at the relevant time. 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 16 August 2017  
 

5 - 12 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Applications for Development  
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

(a)   Warehouse, Mint Lane, Lincoln  
 

13 - 54 

(b)   Land At Poplar Avenue/Beevor Street, Lincoln  
 

55 - 84 

(c)   Land to the Rear of 60 To 72 Chelmsford Street  Lincoln, 
Lincolnshire, LN5 7LL  
 

85 - 138 

(d)   18 Garfield Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire  
 

139 - 150 

(e)   12 Webster Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire  
 

151 - 164 

4.  Consideration of Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order  
 

165 - 176 



 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT 
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and 
Advertisement Applications are: 
 
1. The appropriate Planning Information Folder: This is a file with the same reference 

number as that shown on the Agenda for the Application. It contains the following 
documents: 
 
(a) the application forms; 
(b) plans of the proposed development; 
(c) site plans; 
(d) certificate relating to ownership of the site; 
(e) consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies; 
(f) letters and documents from interested parties; 
(g) memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council. 
 

2. Any previous Planning Information Folders referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for 
the particular application or in the Planning Information Folder specified above. 
 

3. City of Lincoln Local Plan: Adopted 26 August 1998. 
 

4. The emerging draft Local Development Framework is now a material consideration. 
 

5. Lincolnshire Structure Plan – Final Modifications 3 January 2006 
 

6. Regional Spatial Strategy – 17 March 2005 
 

7. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 6 
above set out in the following table.  These documents may be inspected at the 
Planning Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln. 

 
APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 7 above.) 
 
Application No.:  Additional Background Papers 



 

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON 
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006) 
 
 
Criteria: 
 

 Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge 
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the 
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of 
information. 

 

 Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have 
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental 
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc. 

 

 Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason 
of economic or environmental impact. 

 

 Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in 
the area of a site. 

 

 Significant proposals outside the urban area. 
 

 Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development. 
 

 Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would 
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control. 

 

 Development which could create significant hazards or pollution. 
 
 
So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the 
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as 
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears 
essential.   
 
A proforma is available for all Members.  This will need to be completed to request a site visit 
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site 
visit.  It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration 
of a planning application at Committee.  It should also be used to request further or additional 
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.   
  



Planning Committee 16 August 2017 

 
Present: Councillor Jim Hanrahan (in the Chair),  

Councillor Peter West, Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor 
Kathleen Brothwell, Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor 
Gary Hewson, Councillor Ronald Hills, Councillor 
Tony Speakman, Councillor Edmund Strengiel and 
Councillor Naomi Tweddle 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Paul Gowen 
 

 
27.  Confirmation of Minutes - 19 July 2017  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2017 be confirmed. 
 

28.  Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Bob Bushell declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda 
item titled '10-12 Lindum Terrace and 30-32 Sewell Road, Lincoln'.  
 
Reason, He was known to the applicant, however, not as a close associate and 
had in no way predetermined his interest on the application to be considered.  
 
Councillor Ronald Hills declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda 
item titled '10-12 Lindum Terrace and 30-32 Sewell Road, Lincoln'.  
 
Reason: He was known to the applicant, however not as a close associate and 
had in no way predetermined his interest on the application to be considered.  
 

29.  Work to Trees in City Council Ownership  
 

The Arboricultural Officer: 
 

a. advised Members of the reasons for proposed works to tree’s in City 
Council ownership and sought consent as per Appendix A of his report 

 
b. explained that Ward Councillors had been notified of the proposed works 

 
c. stated that in some cases it was not possible to plant a tree in the exact 

location and in these cases a replacement would be replanted in the 
vicinity.  
 

RESOLVED that the works set out in the schedule at Appendix A attached to the 
report be approved. 
 

30.  Applications for Development  
31.  10-12 Lindum Terrace and 30-32 Sewell Road, Lincoln  

 
The Principal Planning Officer: 
 

a. described the location of the application site situated in uphill Lincoln 
occupying an area of land on Sewell Road and Lindum Terrace  

 
b. outlined the proposals for the Medical Village 

5

Item No. 1



 
c. explained that there were two distinct phases to the proposals, the first 

was to renovate and extend the existing buildings and the second was 
linking the two groups of buildings to house a much larger amount of floor 
space for a ground floor car park 
 

d. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows:- 
 

 Policy LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
9 

 Policy LP2 – The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy 10 

 Policy LP5 – Delivering Prosperity and Jobs 22 

 Policy LP9 – Health and Wellbeing 31 

 Policy LP13 – Accessibility and Transport 40 

 Policy LP14 – Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk 44 

 Policy LP16 – Development on Land affected by Contamination 47 

 Policy LP21 – Biodiversity and Geodiversity 54 

 Policy LP25 – The Historic Environment 60 

 Policy LP26 – Design and Amenity 63 

 Policy LP36 – Access and Movement within the Lincoln Area 85 

 The National Policy Framework 
 

d. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

e. referred to the update sheet which contained further responses received in 
respect of the proposed development. 

 
f. highlighted the main issues relating to the proposals as follows:- 

 

 Previous Consideration at the Planning Committee and Subsequent 
Events 

 The Principle of the Development; 

 The Impact of the Design of the Proposals; 

 The Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity; 

 Other Matters; 

 The Planning Balance 
 

g. concluded that: 
 

 The p resumption in favour of sustainable development required by 
the National Planning Policy Framework would apply to the 
proposals as there would not be conflict with three strands of 
sustainability that would apply to development as set out in the 
planning balance. Therefore there would be no harm caused by 
approving the development. 

 It was considered that the application should benefit from planning 
permission for the reasons outlined in the report and subject to the 
conditions outlined within the officers report and a legal agreement 
to ensure that the parking not specifically allocated for staff within 
the site was maintained for short stays and free of charge. 
 

Mr Mike Lewis, a local resident addressed Planning Committee in objection to the 
proposed development covering the following points:- 
 

6



 He was a retired consultant having served 35 years working in intensive 
care. 

 The development would be functioning as a hospital irrespective of the fact 
it had been described as a ‘Medical Village.’ 

 There would be 3 operating theatres with a total of 25 beds. 

 The proposed development was 50% larger than the BMI Hospital. 

 There would be in excess of 150+ staff employed at the establishment. 

 There would be only13 designated staff car parking spaces. 

 Car parking would be an issue due to lack of spaces and 50-60 members 
of staff would be expected to look for a parking space. 

 He felt that the development would be inappropriately located due to traffic 
congestion, pollution and general disturbance.  

 
Mr David Franklin, architect, speaking on behalf of the applicant Dr Salem also 
addressed the Committee with the following points:- 
 

 The development would be an exciting additional to the city offering 
flexible private medical facilities. 

 The premises had been used for medical purposes in the past. 

 Phase 2 would provide two theatres only with an intention for the third to 
be closed. 

 There was staff parking available on Sewell Road with a maximum of 50 
members of staff on site at any one time. 

 Members of staff working shifts or overnight would need 24 hour access to 
the car park for it to operate effectively. 

 A private medical facility in a residential area wouldn’t be an issue as it 
would be a high quality facility operating in normal business hours apart 
from overnights stays. 

 
Members made comments and asked the following questions:- 
 

 Was there a travel plan and how could it be enforced? 

 Given the fact that London had underground parking in the Thames area, 
would an underground parking facility here alleviate the problem? 

 
The Principal Planning Officer offered the following points of clarification to 
members: 
 

 The travel plan provided was a frequent condition requested by the 
Highways Authority for the method proposed including measures to 
monitor/make future amendments if required. 

 The travel plan was a public document which residents/public were able to 
view. 

 There were 13 car parking spaces dedicated to members of staff and 47 
additional spaces which could be utilised for staff and patients on a short 
term basis. There was no indication that the underground car park couldn’t 
be used by staff and patients.  

 It would be a decision made by Members as to whether controls should be 
put in place to provide free parking and clarification would be need to be 
sought by officers regarding a legal agreement to secure this. 

 
Councillor Hills proposed a motion to remove requirement within the officer’s 
recommendation within the report for free car parking on site. 
 

7



This motion failed to receive a seconder and was lost. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be granted subject to the conditions outlined 
below and that authority be delegated to the Planning Manager to enable the 
signing of a legal agreement which ensured that the parking provided in the 
development (not specifically allocated for staff) was maintained for short stays 
and free of charge. 
 
Standard Conditions 
 

 Timeframe of the application (for permission); 

 Approved Plans; 
 
Conditions to be Discharged Prior to the Commencement of Development 
 

 Contaminated Land (Remediation Scheme and its Implementation) 

 Construction of the development (delivery times and working hours; and 
site compound location); 

 Bat Mitigation; 

 Surface water drainage scheme for the development (including no run-off 
to the street from hard landscaping); 

 Materials; 

 Location / Design / Noise Impact of Plant and Machinery or Venting; 
 
Conditions to be Discharged Prior to the Implementation of the Use 
 

 Car Parking / Servicing / Storage of Refuse; 

 Travel Plan; 

 Landscaping; 

 Finished Land Levels; 

 Management of Parking; 

 Electric Vehicle Recharging; 
 
Conditions to be Adhered to at all Times 
 

 Works to Trees; 

 Lighting Strategy; 

 Construction Working; 

 Construction Deliveries; 

 Waste Collection / Delivery Times; 

 Gated Access to Sewell Road; and 

 Reporting Unexpected Contamination. 
 

32.  Birchwood Leisure Centre, Birchwood Avenue, Lincoln  
 

The Planning Manager: 
 

a. described the location of the development which was to the east of 
Birchwood Avenue bounded by the Sure Start Children’s Centre to the 
south and a dentist practise to the north, currently consisting of the leisure 
centre, social club, changing rooms and car park 

 

8



b. advised that approval was sought to upgrade and improve the facilities 
through significant internal and external alterations to redefine and refresh 
the identity of the centre 
 

c. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows: 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework  

 Policy LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

 Policy LP5 - Community Facilities 

 Policy LP26 - Design and Amenity 
 

d. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

e. referred to the update sheet which contained a further response received 
from the Councils’ Pollution Control Officer 
 

f. advised members of the main issues to be considered by the application 
as follows: 
 

 Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy 

 Impact on Amenity of Neighbouring Uses 

 Impact on Visual Amenity 

 Highway Safety, Access and Parking 
 

g. concluded that: 
 

 The scheme would improve the visual amenity of the existing property and 
wider area which would provide a modernised frontage onto Birchwood 
Avenue 

 A slight increase in activity would not have a detrimental impact on the 
neighbouring properties or immediate area and would bring further benefits 
to the locality. 

 The proposals were therefore entirely in accordance with the Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
Members made comments and asked the following questions:- 
 

 Would electric vehicle re charging points be provided as requested by the 
Pollution Control Officer? 

 Clarification was requested as to why there were internal visuals? 

 Would there be a planting scheme to replace those trees removed from 
the north east area of the site near the RAF Squadron memorial? 

 
The Planning Manager offered the following points of clarification to members: 
 

 The installation of electric vehicle re-charging points was being costed to 
be included within the development in due course. 

 It was part of the part of the planning process in this case to include 
internal visuals for information of member’s completeness. 

 
The Arboricultural Officer provided clarification to members on the following 
points: 
 

9



 That there would be a future planting scheme in the north east area of the 
site. 

 Most of the trees next to the existing memorial would not be affected 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of 

this consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in 
accordance with the drawings listed within Table A below. 

 
  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the 

approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the 
application. 

   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the 

approved plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
 
03) Details of all external materials to be used in the development shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before the 
development commences.  The approved materials shall not be 
substituted without the written consent of the City Council as Local 
Planning Authority. 

   
  Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
04) No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of replanting, which 
shall include details of the replacement trees to be planted following the 
reconfiguration of the car park. 

   
  Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Section 

197 of the 1990 Act which requires local planning authorities to ensure, 
where appropriate, that adequate provision is made for the preservation or 
planting of trees. 

 
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
 
  None. 
 
Additional condition agreed by Planning Committee 
 
Installation of electric vehicle recharging points. 
 

33.  The Performance of the Council in Appeals Decided by the Planning 

10



Inspectorate  
 

The Planning Manager: 
 

a. advised members that this report referred to the performance of the 
Council at Appeals and included details of the appeal decisions that had 
been received since 01 January 2015 to 01 August 2017  
 

b. explained that there were 3 key component reasons that were required to 
be stated to warrant refusal of planning permission:- 

 

 The issue 

 The harm it caused 

 Which planning policy it was contrary to 
 

c. stated that the Council had received 30 appeals following decisions to 
refuse applications for planning permission, advertisement consent and 
other work carried out in that period, the full list of which was included as 
an appendix to the officer’s report  
 

d. outlined the list of appeals that were carried out. 
 

e. concluded that this update was for members’ information and sought 
comments regarding the content of the report. 
 

Members made comments and asked the following questions:- 
 

 What was the significance of the 21 metres distance between properties?  

 With regards to applications that were refused by the Planning 
Inspectorate, was the Council awarded costs? 

 In relation to the HIMO on 36 Yarborough Road, did this decision affect 
other applications? 

 
The Planning Manager offered the following points of clarification to members: 
 

 The preferred separation distance of 21 metres wasn’t formal policy, 
however in due course supported planning guidance would be helpful on 
this matter to make it clear. Views would differ regardless in each 
individual planning application which was to be assessed on its own merit. 

 The Council had not been awarded costs for any of the decisions listed in 
the report. Costs would also depend on the impact on the developer and 
the delay caused by the refusal/appeal. 

 The HIMO on 36 Yarborough Road related to existing use. The decision 
made did not impact on Article 4 and did not set a precedent in the 
approval of further planning applications for Sui Generis HIMO’s in the 
West End. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 

11



This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2017/0617/FUL 

Site Address: Warehouse, Mint Lane, Lincoln 

Target Date: 2nd September 2017 

Agent Name: Brewster Bye Architects 

Applicant Name: Thomas Samuel Ltd 

Proposal: Demolition of single storey hall building and entrance link. 
Conversion of existing parish hall and school buildings, 
extension and conversion of existing warehouse and erection 
of two, 5 storey buildings to accommodate a total of 138 new 
residential studios with associated external alterations and 
central glazed atrium link. 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
Site Location 
 
The site extends from the corner of Park Street and Beaumont Fee, behind the existing 
Stokes Warehouse on Mint Lane. The site fronts Beaumont Fee to the west, Park Street to 
the North, and Mint Lane to the east. Home nightclub is located east of the site and Age 
UK to the north. 
 
The existing building located on the corner of Park Street and Beaumont Fee is the former 
St. Martin’s Parish Hall. The western section of this building (fronting Beaumont Fee) is a 
two-storey structure. The rear single storey section has a frontage to Park Street. There 
are no buildings or structures on the eastern section of the site, which is largely used as a 
surface car park.  
 
The site is situated within the Cathedral and City Centre No.1 Conservation Area. 
 
Description of Development 
  
The application proposes 133 managed self-contained studio rooms for use by students 
with a variety of communal managed facilities such as gym, dining hall, laundry, meeting 
rooms, cinema and lounge area. 
 
The proposed development has been split between a number of separate detached 
blocks. The existing two-storey west wing of the hall building would be retained and 
converted into 8 studios. The existing hall at the east end of the site would be demolished 
and replaced with a five storey building, housing 34 studios. The existing Stokes 
Warehouse would be retained with an additional storey added to the roof. This would 
contain 23 studios. A new five storey building is proposed on the existing car park which 
would accommodate a further 47 studios. Finally the existing school building fronting 
Beaumont Fee would be retained and would accommodate 21 studios.  

13

Item No. 3a



 
 
 
Planning History 
 
In 2016 (2016/0202/F) permission was granted for the conversion of the existing parish 
hall to 7 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation; partial demolition and erection of five 
storey building fronting park street and the erection of five storey building fronting Mint 
Street to accommodate a mixture of aparthotel, student accommodation and retail (see 
images below).   

 

14



 
 

 
 
The previous scheme approved two new five storey blocks, as does the proposed 
application. The difference with the current application is the inclusion of the Stoke’s 
Warehouse builidng and the former School on Beaumont Fee.   
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 24th August 2017. 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy LP25: The Historic Environment 
Policy LP26: Design and Amenity 
 
Issues 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
The Principle of the Development 
Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area 
Residential Amenity 
Highways 
Archaeology 
Loss of Trees 

15



Refuse 
Contaminated Land  
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Historic England 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincolnshire Police 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincoln Civic Trust 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Education Planning Manager, 
Lincolnshire County Council 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Steep Hill Area Residents 

 
No Response Received 
 

 
Steep Hill Area Residents 

 
No Response Received 
 

 
Environment Agency 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Anglian Water 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Highways & Planning 

 
No Response Received 
 

 
West End Residents 
Association 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Mr Dave Andrew 9 St Andrews Close 
Lincoln LN5 7XT  

Mrs Valerie Wilkinson 25 Lee Rd 
Lincoln LN2 4BJ                                                                      

 
Two letters have been received making comments on the proposed application. The points 
raised principally relate to the following matters: 

16



 Parking  

 Too much student accommodation  

 Ugly design  

 Should be commercial at ground floor  
 
These matters will be discussed within the main body of the report.  
 
Consideration 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
 
Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework outlines that “at the heart of the 
National Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making 
and decision-taking.  
 
56. The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. 
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, 
and should contribute positively to making places better for people. 
 
57. It is important to plan positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design 
for all development, including individual buildings, public and private spaces and wider 
area development schemes. 
 
58. Planning decisions should aim to ensure that developments: 
 

 will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 
but over the lifetime of the development; 

 establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to create 
attractive and comfortable places to live, work and visit; 

 optimise the potential of the site to accommodate development, create and sustain 
an appropriate mix of uses (including incorporation of green and other public space 
as part of developments) and support local facilities and transport networks; 

 respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local surroundings 
and materials, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation; 

 create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of 
crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion; and 

 are visually attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping. 
 
61. Although visual appearance and the architecture of individual buildings are very 
important factors, securing high quality and inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic 
considerations. Therefore, planning policies and decisions should address the connections 
between people and places and the integration of new development into the natural, built 
and historic environment. 
 
Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 
At the heart of the strategy for Central Lincolnshire is a desire to deliver sustainable 
growth; 
 
growth that is not for its own sake, but growth that brings benefits for all sectors of the 
community for existing residents as much as for new ones. 

17



When considering development proposals, the Central Lincolnshire districts of West 
Lindsey, Lincoln City and North Kesteven will take a positive approach that reflects the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning 
Policy Framework. The districts will always work proactively with applicants to find 
solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure 
development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in Central 
Lincolnshire. 
 
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan will be approved 
without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date 
at the time of making the decision, then the appropriate Council will grant permission 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether: 
 
Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy 
Framework taken as a whole; or Specific policies in that Framework indicate that 
development should be restricted. 
 
Policy LP25: The Historic Environment 
 
Development proposals should protect, conserve and seek opportunities to enhance the 
historic environment of Central Lincolnshire. 
 
In instances where a development proposal would affect the significance of a heritage 
asset (whether designated or non-designated), including any contribution made by its 
setting, the applicant will be required to undertake the following, in a manner proportionate 
to the asset’s significance: 
 
a. describe and assess the significance of the asset, including its setting, to determine its 
architectural, historical or archaeological interest; and 
 
b. identify the impact of the proposed works on the significance and special character of 
the asset; and 
 
c. provide clear justification for the works, especially if these would harm the significance 
of the asset or its setting, so that the harm can be weighed against public benefits. 
 
Unless it is explicitly demonstrated that the proposal meets the tests set out in the NPPF, 
permission will only be granted for development affecting designated or non-designated 
heritage assets where the impact of the proposal(s) does not harm the significance of the 
asset and/or its setting. 
 
Development proposals will be supported where they: 
 
d. Protect the significance of designated heritage assets (including their setting) by 
protecting and enhancing architectural and historic character, historical associations, 
landscape and townscape features and through consideration of scale, design, materials, 
siting, layout, mass, use, and views and vistas both from and towards the asset; 
 
e. Promote opportunities to better reveal significance of heritage assets, where possible; 

18



 
f. Take into account the desirability of sustaining and enhancing non-designated heritage 
assets and their setting. 
 
The change of use of heritage assets will be supported provided: 
 
g. the proposed use is considered to be the optimum viable use, and is compatible with the 
fabric, interior, character, appearance and setting of the heritage asset; 
 
h. such a change of use will demonstrably assist in the maintenance or enhancement of 
the heritage asset; and 
 
i. features essential to the special interest of the individual heritage asset are not lost or 
altered to facilitate the change of use. 
 
Listed Buildings 
 
Permission to change the use of a Listed Building or to alter or extend such a building will 
be granted where the local planning authority is satisfied that the proposal is in the interest 
of the building’s preservation and does not involve activities or alterations prejudicial to the 
special architectural or historic interest of the Listed Building or its setting. 
 
Permission that results in substantial harm to or loss of a Listed Building will only be 
granted in exceptional or, for grade I and II* Listed Buildings, wholly exceptional 
circumstances. 
 
Development proposals that affect the setting of a Listed Building will be supported where 
they preserve or better reveal the significance of the Listed Building. 
 
Conservation Areas 
 
Development within, affecting the setting of, or affecting views into or out of, a 
Conservation Area should preserve (and enhance or reinforce it, as appropriate) features 
that contribute positively to the area’s character, appearance and setting. Proposals 
should: 
 
j. Retain buildings/groups of buildings, existing street patterns, historic building lines and 
ground surfaces; 
 
k. Retain architectural details that contribute to the character and appearance of the area; 
 
l. Where relevant and practical, remove features which are incompatible with the 
Conservation Area; 
 
m. Retain and reinforce local distinctiveness with reference to height, massing, scale, 
form, materials and lot widths of the existing built environment; 
 
n. Assess, and mitigate against, any negative impact the proposal might have on the 
townscape, roofscape, skyline and landscape; 
 
o. Aim to protect trees, or where losses are proposed, demonstrate how such losses are 
appropriately mitigated against. 

19



 
Archaeology 
 
Development affecting archaeological remains, whether known or potential, designated or 
undesignated, should take every practical and reasonable step to protect and, where 
possible, enhance their significance. 
 
Planning applications for such development should be accompanied by an appropriate and 
proportionate assessment to understand the potential for and significance of remains, and 
the impact of development upon them. 
 
If initial assessment does not provide sufficient information, developers will be required to 
undertake field evaluation in advance of determination of the application. This may include 
a range of techniques for both intrusive and non-intrusive evaluation, as appropriate to the 
site. Wherever possible and appropriate, mitigation strategies should ensure the 
preservation of archaeological remains in-situ. Where this is either not possible or not 
desirable, provision must be made for preservation by record according to an agreed 
written scheme of investigation submitted by the developer and approved by the planning 
authority. 
 
Any work undertaken as part of the planning process must be appropriately archived in a 
way agreed with the local planning authority. 
 
Policy LP26: Design and Amenity 
 
All development, including extensions and alterations to existing buildings, must achieve 
high quality sustainable design that contributes positively to local character, landscape and 
townscape, and supports diversity, equality and access for all. 
 
Development proposals will be assessed against the following relevant design and 
amenity criteria. 
 
Design Principles 
 
All development proposals must take into consideration the character and local 
distinctiveness of the area (and enhance or reinforce it, as appropriate) and create a sense 
of place. As such, and where applicable, proposals will be required to demonstrate, to a 
degree proportionate to the proposal, that they: 
 
a. Make effective and efficient use of land; 
 
b. Maximise pedestrian permeability and avoid barriers to movement through careful 
consideration of street layouts and access routes; 
 
c. Respect the existing topography, landscape character and identity, and relate well to the 
site and surroundings, particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing, form and plot 
widths; 
 
d. Not result in the visual or physical coalescence with any neighbouring settlement; 
 
e. Not result in ribbon development, nor extend existing linear features of the settlement, 
and instead retain, where appropriate, a tight village nucleus; 

20



f. Incorporate and retain as far as possible existing natural and historic features such as 
hedgerows, trees, ponds, boundary walls, field patterns, buildings or structures; 
 
g. Incorporate appropriate landscape treatment to ensure that the development can be 
satisfactorily assimilated into the surrounding area; 
 
h. Provide well designed boundary treatments, and hard and soft landscaping that reflect 
the function and character of the development and its surroundings; 
 
i. Protect any important local views into, out of or through the site; 
 
j. Duly reflect or improve on the original architectural style of the local surroundings, or 
embrace opportunities for innovative design and new technologies which sympathetically 
complement or contrast with the local architectural style; 
 
k. Use appropriate, high quality materials which reinforce or enhance local distinctiveness, 
with consideration given to texture, colour, pattern and durability; 
 
l. Ensure public places and buildings are accessible to all: this should not be limited to 
physical accessibility, but should also include accessibility for people with conditions such 
as dementia or sight impairment for example. 
 
Amenity Considerations 
 
The amenities which all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and buildings 
may reasonably expect to enjoy must not be unduly harmed by or as a result of 
development. 
 
Proposals should demonstrate, where applicable and to a degree proportionate to the 
proposal, how the following matters have been considered, in relation to both the 
construction and life of the development: 
 
m. Compatibility with neighbouring land uses; 
 
n. Overlooking; 
 
o. Overshadowing; 
 
p. Loss of light; 
 
q. Increase in artificial light or glare; 
 
r. Adverse noise and vibration; 
 
s. Adverse impact upon air quality from odour, fumes, smoke, dust and other sources; 
 
t. Adequate storage, sorting and collection of household and commercial waste, including 
provision for increasing recyclable waste; 
 
u. Creation of safe environments. 
 

21



Similarly, proposals for development adjacent to, or in the vicinity of, existing 'bad 
neighbour' uses will need to demonstrate that both the ongoing use of the neighbouring 
site is not compromised, and that the amenity of occupiers of the new development will be 
satisfactory with the ongoing normal use of the neighbouring site, taking account of criteria 
m to u above. 

Impact of the Proposed New Development on the Character and Appearance of the 
Conservation Area 
 
Historic England have commented on the proposals and have the following view:  
 
“Having reviewed the information provided, in the context of the previously approved 
scheme, we believe that the current proposals would have a greater adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of the conservation area. In particular we believe that the 
proposed alterations to Stokes Warehouse which involves the demolition of the roof 
structure and raises the height of the building above the proposed five storey blocks, along 
with the partial loss of parish hall, the proposed alterations to the former school building 
and the proposed new five storey blocks would result in a high level of less than 
substantial harm to the overall significance and character and appearance of the 
conservation area, as outlined below.  
 

We believe that the scheme would be significantly improved by the removal of the 
proposed two storey roof extension to Stokes Warehouse and recommend that the 
application is amended accordingly. If the application remains unchanged, Historic 
England objects to the application on heritage grounds”. 
 
These issues will now be dealt with in turn.  
 
Partial Demolition of the Parish Hall 
 
Pre application discussions have been entered into with the applicants. The LPA have 
sought to resist the demolition of St Martins Hall, an undesignated heritage asset in the 
arts and crafts style which is considered to make a positive contribution to the character 
and appearance of the City and Cathedral conservation area. The simpler detailed rear 
section of the building is not considered as architecturally significant. Therefore the partial 
retention and incorporation of the front part of the hall into the scheme is welcomed.  

 
Alterations to Stokes Warehouse 
 
Stokes Warehouse sits in a prominent position on the corner of Park Street and Mint Lane. 
It is a building of considerable townscape merit as highlighted above and makes a strong 
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area.  
 
It is proposed to convert and extend the existing warehouse. In order to achieve this a new 
structural frame and foundations are proposed. The existing façade is to be retained with 
minor alterations to the narrow openings at west end to the north elevation are proposed. 
The openings at this end of the elevation are proposed to be altered to reflect the form and 
size of the remainder of the openings and their position would also be altered. On the east 
elevation a ground floor doorway is proposed to be blocked.  
 
It was originally proposed to remove the dual pitched roof and replace with a two storey 
glazed element that would be framed by metal panels. Following the comments made by 

22



Historic England, officers have negotiated with the applicants to reduce the height of the 
building, with a single glazed storey now being added rather than the original two. In urban 
design terms this still sits comfortably within the surrounding context, with the glazed 
extension sitting slightly higher than the two adjacent new blocks, as is typical of a corner 
building, such as the existing Stokes Warehouse.  
 
Whilst this alteration does not entirely overcome the concerns raised by Historic England, 
Officers do consider that the reduction in height lessens the impact when looking at long 
range views of the development.  
 
The Former School 
 
The former school building is an attractive and distinctive 19th century building which 
architecturally makes a positive contribution to the townscape context. However, 
unfortunately this valuable building has suffered vacancy despite being marketed and has 
fallen into a state of dilapidation which detracts from the character and appearance of the 
conservation area. Therefore, its inclusion in this development scheme is welcomed in 
order to secure its long term future. In order to facilitate the conversion the building into 
accommodation alterations to the windows are proposed.  
 
There is no disputing that the alterations to the principal façade would alter the 
architectural composition of the building. However it is considered that the quality of the 
overall composition, distinctive detailing and ornamentation and overall architectural 
character is retained. Furthermore, the modest dormer windows are such that they are 
appropriately assimilated into the generous roofscape and are a feature which is 
congruous with this period of building.  
 
When looking at the planning balance it is considered that the inclusion of the school 
building within the overall scheme investing in the upkeep of the building which would also 
achieve the preservation and enhancement of the Conservation Area. It is considered by 
the planning authority that the alteration is acceptable in terms of the public benefit in 
securing the building’s future. 

New Buildings and Impact on Views 
 
Historic England have made the following comments “Overall the proposed blocks make 
limited reference to the prevailing character and appearance of the conservation area, 
particularly in terms of their scale/storey height, or their architectural design and form, and 
in our view, do not respond appropriately to their context or sit harmoniously within the 
street scene. 
 
In particular, when viewed from Beaumont Fee, the proposed blocks would form an 
uncharacteristic and stark backdrop to the former parish hall and school building, 
appearing out of scale, dominating and competing with its neighbours”. 

View from Beaumont Fee 
 
Block A, which would replace the rear section of the former parish hall, would be a five 
storey structure fronting Park Street. The upper floor of the block would be set back on all 
four sides and the Park Street elevation would comprise horizontal and vertical brick 
elements with chamfered bricks to create deep reveals and the brickwork would be a 
similar colour to the surrounding buildings.  

 

23



The relationship between the new development and the parish hall would be very similar to 
the existing townscape, with the taller stokes warehouse located behind the parish hall. It 
is considered that whilst the new developments pulls a taller element of the building closer 
to Beaumont Fee some of the impact would be mitigated by the use of glazing to break up 
the visual impact. Minimal work is proposed on the existing building to enable its change of 
use to studio apartments.  
 
A light weight glazed structure would link the buildings fronting Beaumont Fee to create an 
entrance to the site and to tie the individual buildings together in one shared space. It is 
also considered that the inclusion of Blocks A and B, built from the same materials and 
viewed at the rear of this elevation means that the site reads as one development and 
brings this whole corner site into a viable use.  

View from Park Street 
 
Whilst St Martins Parish Hall’s modest scale is consistent with the more intimate grain 
which characterises Beaumont Fee, to the rear, Park Street has a more transitional 
character. Park Street sees a rising in height with a number of multi storey buildings. In 
terms of the scale of Block A, referencing the warehouse and other 3 and 4 storey 
buildings along Park Street is considered acceptable as, in both location, form and 
massing, the new development visually relates to these precedents rather than Beaumont 
Fee.  

View from Mint Lane 
 
In views along Mint Lane, the new development is a convincing extension to the 
warehouse building. It is particularly successful at ground floor where it engages more 
successfully with the pedestrian. The roof detail is unusual, however, in reality this will 
have a limited impact as views towards it will be limited by the constraints of the 
townscape. 
 
The elevation to the south of the development facing into the existing car park would 
remain largely blank. This is considered beneficial as it does not stifle any future 
development to the south of the site. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
The proposed development is located within a mixed use area between the High Street 
and the West End of Lincoln. The immediate area is predominantly commercial properties 
of bars and nightclub and office uses. It is not considered that there would be any impact 
on residential amenity in this area due to these other uses already being in situ, however 
there could be an impact on the amenity of future residents of the student accommodation  
 
Due to the location of the development the applicant is required to consider the likely 
night-time maximum noise events to ensure that the proposed noise mitigation methods 
are sufficient to protect the future occupants from sleep disturbance. 
 
Archaeology 
 
The Lincoln Archaeological Resource Assessment indicates that there is potential for 
remains to be recovered in this area relating to several Research Agenda Zones. Some of 
the most significant of these are; 
 

24



 7.11.4 – Roman houses within the walled lower city,  

 7.20 – Temple complexes in the Roman lower city 

 9.37 – The High medieval mint and jewellery quarter 

  
There have been no large-scale archaeological investigations undertaken either on the site 
itself or within a radius of 100m. The nature extent and significance of the remains present 
on the site is therefore difficult to estimate without further evaluation. However, the 
Heritage Impact Assessment supplied with the previous application (2016/0202/F) clearly 
indicates that there is a high potential for archaeological remains to be encountered during 
groundworks. The HIA states that there is a particularly high potential for Roman remains 
to be present, with a lesser but still significant chance that remains from the Saxon and 
Medieval periods may be encountered. 
 
It will be necessary for the applicant to prepare a WSI for archaeological evaluation at the 
earliest opportunity should permission for the development be granted. This can then be 
used to inform an appropriate foundation design.  
 
Although the site is not scheduled, it lies within the Ancient Monument 115A area of 
archaeological interest. This local designation defines areas that, although not scheduled, 
are likely to include archaeological remains of equal significance to those identified as 
Scheduled Ancient Monument 115. It is therefore considered that the undesignated 
archaeology of the site is subject to those policies in NPPF that apply to designated 
heritage assets, as indicated by paragraph 139 of that document, which states that 
“on-designated heritage assets of archaeological interest that are demonstrably of 
equivalent significance to scheduled monuments, should be considered subject to the 
policies for designated heritage assets.” 
 
It is considered that the impact of development on the archaeology of the site can be 
appropriately mitigated, subject to further archaeological evaluation, the provision of an 
approved foundation design, and the preparation of an appropriate WSI.   
 
Loss of Trees 
 
The proposed works would not impact on any protected trees or require the removal of any 
trees.  
 
Highways 
 
The Highways Authority originally raised concerns with the design of the development as 
there were a number of doors opening out onto the public highway. This has now been 
amended so all doors are inward opening, therefore eliminating the risk to pedestrians on 
the adjacent footpaths.  
 
No other issues have been raised with regards to highway safety or capacity.  
 
Surface Water Flooding 
 
The preferred method of surface water disposal would be to a sustainable drainage 
system with connection to the sewer as the last option. Whilst a flood risk assessment has 
been submitted with the application this is considered insufficient for Anglian Water take 
make an assessment on the method of surface water disposal. Therefore a condition could 

25



be attached to any permission, as suggested by Anglian Water, to ensure that a surface 
water management strategy is submitted prior to works commencing on site.  
 
Refuse 
 
Provision has been made within the scheme for 12no. bins. These would be located to the 
south east corner of the site within a dedicated internal bin store. Bins would be presented 
to Mint Lane.    
 
Contaminated Land 
  
A site investigation has been undertaken for the majority of the site however this excludes 
consideration of the former Stokes warehouse. It is therefore recommended that 
conditions are applied to any consent granted to ensure that investigation of the 
warehouse is undertaken as well as further site investigation after demolition of the 
buildings. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The principle of the development of much of this site was established with the approval of 
permission in 2016. It is considered that the proposed scheme offers further benefit to that 
previously approved as it now plans for the inclusion of the former school building and the 
Stokes Warehouse. This scheme would deliver development of this whole corner of 
Beaumont Fee and Park Street and would sympathetically reuse existing buildings within 
the Conservation Area to one inclusive use.  
 
The applicants have worked with the planning authority during the application process to 
take on board comments received from consultees and have subsequently reduced the 
height of the extension to the Stokes Warehouse and made amendments to the ground 
floor layout. With these changes and with the conditions referred to throughout this report it 
is considered that the proposed development would be acceptable and in accordance with 
national and local planning policy.  
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes with an agreed extension of time.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is Granted Conditionally.  
 
Conditions 
 
Work to commence within 3 years  
Work in accordance with the plans  
Contaminated Land  
Noise Assessment  
Surface Water Drainage Assessment  
Materials including window frames and brick sample panels  
Archaeology 
Window details – profiles and materials for all buildings – new and replacement 

26



Brick cleaning specification and sample area to be approved before this work is 
undertaken 

27



This page is intentionally blank.



Site Location Plan 

 

Site block Plan 

 

29



Floor Plans 

 

Ground Floor Plan 

 

First Floor Plan  

30



 

Second Floor Plan 

 

Third Floor Plan 

31



 

Fourth Floor Plan 

 

Elevations 

 

Proposed North Elevation  

32



 

Proposed East Elevation  

 

Proposed West Elevation 

 

Proposed North Elevation  

 

33



Photographs 

 

Front of Former School Building 

 

Rear of the former school building  

34



 

Front of Parish Hall Building  

 

Corner of Parish Hall 

35



 

Rear of Parish Hall to be demolished  

 

Stokes Warehouse  

36



 

Stokes Warehouse fronting Mint Street  

 

Site for the proposed new block fronting Mint Street  

 

37



 

Site for the proposed new block fronting Mint Street  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



Consultee Responses 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Thank you for referring the above application, which was received on 16 June 2017. 

This proposal falls outside the scope of matters on which the Environment Agency is a statutory 

consultee. Therefore we have no comment to make on this application. 

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further, please do 

not hesitate to contact me on the number below. 

 

Kind regards,  

Keri Monger 

Sustainable Places – Planning Advisor | Lincolnshire and Northamptonshire 

Environment Agency | Nene House, Pytchley Road Industrial Estate, Pytchley Lodge Road, Kettering, 

NN15 6JQ  

 

keri.monger@environment-agency.gov.uk | planningkettering@environment-agency.gov.uk  

Direct Dial: 020 847 48545 | Team Dial: 020 302 53536 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Not in our area but one for interest for Help the Aged 
 
On 16 Jun 2017, at 11:55, developmentteam@lincoln.gov.uk wrote: 
 
Dear Nigel Manders 
  
Please find attached consultation for Planning application reference  
2017/0617/FUL 
  
Regards 
  
Development Team 
City of Lincoln Council 
 
City of Lincoln Council is a Living Wage employer. If you would like to know more about the Living 
Wage, or sign up to the Making Lincoln  
Living Wage campaign, please visit  
www.lincolnagainstpoverty.co.uk/livingwage 

39

mailto:keri.monger@environment-agency.gov.uk
mailto:planningkettering@environment-agency.gov.uk
mailto:developmentteam@lincoln.gov.uk
http://www.lincolnagainstpoverty.co.uk/livingwage
https://twitter.com/envagency
https://www.facebook.com/environmentagency
http://www.youtube.co.uk/user/EnvironmentAgencyTV
https://www.flickr.com/photos/environment-agency
https://www.linkedin.com/company/environment-agency
https://www.gov.uk/environment-agency


 

 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE 
 

POLICE HEADQUARTERS 

PO Box 999 

LINCOLN  LN5 7PH 

Fax:  (01522) 558128  

DDI:  (01522) 558292 

email  

john.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk 

 

Your Ref: App. 2017/0617/FUL                                                              20th June 2017 

 Our Ref: PG// 

 

Development & Environmental Services 

City Hall, Beaumont Fee 

Lincoln, LN1 1DF 

 

Re:  Warehouse, Mint Lane, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, HMO Student Accommodation 
Thank you for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed 

development. I would request that you consider the following points that if adhered to would 

help reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and sustainability of the 

development. 

Historically Student Accommodation can become vulnerable to crime and anti-social 

behaviour therefore it is important that the best security arrangements and provision are 

planned for such premises. 

The safety, security and general well being of student should be of paramount importance 

when considering the detail of this application. The site is centrally located and has an 

entrance that exits onto a busy area of Lincoln, within the centre of Lincoln nightlife? The 

following aspects of security should be rigorously applied to this building. 

Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application in principle but would 

recommend that the initial advisory recommendations are implemented. 

External doors and windows 

The potential for unwanted guests will be considerable at this location and therefore robust 

measures should be installed to ensure the security and safety of student residents. I have 

some concerns that access may be easily gained via either of the shown entrances and the 

risk of ‘follow through’ entry gained. I would recommend that an air-lock style entrance 

vestibule is incorporated into the design (to help prevent unauthorised follow through 

access) commensurate with an access control system, with an electronic door release, and 

visitor door entry system that provides colour images, and clear audio communications 

40



linked to each individual unit. Under no circumstances should a trade person release button 

or similar uncontrolled access method be used. 

An Industry standard approved CCTV system should be installed covering all communal 

points of entry and lobby areas. This system must be able to capture and record all persons 

using the entry system.  

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24.2016 or 

Bespoke equivalent (doors of an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference 

number for PAS 23/24 and is published by Warrington Certification Laboratories).  

All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the ground 

must conform to improved security standard PAS24: 2016. All ground floor windows 

should have window restrainers and effective locking systems. 

I would recommend that all ground floor and easily accessible windows have at least one 

pane of laminated glass. 

Individual Flat or Unit Doors. 

Flat entrance door-sets should meet the same physical requirements as the ‘main front door’ 

i.e. PAS24:2016. The locking hardware should be operable from both sides of an unlocked 

door without the use of the key (utilising a roller latch or latch operable from both sides of the 

door-set by a handle). If the door-set is certified to either PAS24:2016 or STS 201 Issue 

4:2012 then it must be classified as DKT. 

Homes of Multi-Occupancy / Student Accommodation – Communal Areas & Mail 

Delivery 

Where communal mail delivery facilities are proposed and are to be encouraged with other 

security and safety measures to reduce the need for access to the premises communal letter 

boxes should comply to the following criteria.  

 Located at the main entrance within an internal area or lobby (vestibule) covered by 
CCTV or located within an ‘airlock style’ entrance hall. 

 Be of a robust construction (Federation Technical Specification 009 (TS009) 

 Have anti-fishing properties where advised and appropriate. 

 Installed to the manufacturers specifications. 

 Through wall mail delivery can be a suitable and secure method.  
 

Lighting 

Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors and be controlled by photoelectric 

cell (dusk to dawn) with a manual override.  The use of low consumption lamps with an 

efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is required; it is recommended that they be 

positioned to prevent possible attack.  

Cycle Storage Structure (if to be included) 

Generally pedestrian access doors-sets to commercial units should be certified to LPS 1175 

security rating 2. The access controlled door should be designed in such a way that the 

hinges and door-sets are of a non-lift nature and non-tamper proof. The door locks must be 

operable by way of a thumb screw turn to avoid any person being accidently locked in the 

cycle storage area. 

 

41



Lighting within cycle storage area; automatically activated passive infra-red lighting should 

be considered rather than permanent lighting to which other users become accustomed and 

therefore activation would not draw any attention. Lighting units should be vandal resistant 

energy efficient light fittings. 

Bin Storage (not seen) 

Internal communal bin and bicycle stores within blocks of flats must have no windows and be 

fitted with a secure door set that meets the same physical specification as ‘front door’ and 

specifically Section 2, paragraphs 21.1 to 21.6 and 21.8 to 21.13. 

This will ensure that such stores are only accessible to residents. The locking system must 

be operable from the inner face by use of a thumb turn to ensure that residents are not 

accidentally locked in by another person. A bicycle store must also be provided with stands 

with secure anchor points or secure cycle stands. 

External bins stores and home composting containers (supplied to meet ‘Code for 
Sustainable Homes’ ‘Was 3’) should be sited in such a way that they cannot be used as a 
climbing aid to commit crime. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification. 

Please refer to Commercial Guide 2015 & New Homes 2016 which can be located on 
www.securedbydesign.com  

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.  Neither the 

Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.  

However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be committed. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

John Manuel MA BA (Hons) PGCE Dip Bus. 

 

Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42

http://www.securedbydesign.com/


Dear Mr Manning 

T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 

WAREHOUSE, MINT LANE, LINCOLN, LINCOLNSHIRE 

Application No. 2017/0617/FUL 

 

Thank you for your letter of 16 June 2017 regarding the above application for planning permission. 

On the basis of the information available to date, we offer the following advice to assist your 

authority in determining the application. 

 

Summary 

The planning application includes the proposed partial demolition and conversion of the former 

parish hall, conversion of the former school buildings, extension and conversion of the existing 

warehouse and the erection of two new 5 storey blocks, for residential use with a glazed central link.  

We have been consulted on the basis that the proposed development constitutes development 

within a conservation area where the area of the application site is greater 1000 square metres, and 

because the proposed development would be greater than 20 metres in height [within a 

conservation area]. The development site also lies within the setting of the Lincoln Roman Colonia 

which is a scheduled monument.   

Our advice is given in accordance with the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990, the NPPF, the Planning Practice Guidance and the Historic Environment Good Practice in 

Planning Notes 2 and 3.  

We have previously given advice in relation to proposals at this site in our letter of 21st April 2016 

(Application ref- 2016/0202/F).  The previous application proposed the partial demolition of the 

former parish hall and the erection of two five storey buildings. In our letter we advised that the 

proposed scheme would cause a high level of less than substantial harm to the significance of the 

conservation area, we are therefore disappointed to learn the application was subsequently 

approved by your authority.  

Having reviewed the information provided, in the context of the previously approved scheme, we 

believe that the current proposals would have a greater adverse impact on the character and 

appearance of the conservation area. In particular we believe that the proposed alterations to 

Stokes Warehouse which involves the demolition of the roof structure and raises the height of the 

building above the proposed five storey blocks, along with the partial loss of parish hall, the 

proposed alterations to the former school building and the proposed new five storey blocks would 

result in a high level of less than substantial harm to the overall significance and character and 

appearance of the conservation area, as outlined below.  

We believe that the scheme would be significantly improved by the removal of the proposed two 

storey roof extension to Stokes Warehouse and recommend that the application is amended 

accordingly. If the application remains unchanged, Historic England objects to the application on 

heritage grounds. 

43



 

Historic England Advice 

Significance  

We note no heritage statement/ assessment of significance has been included with this application 

in line with paragraph 128 of the NPPF. From our analysis of the site the significance is as follows- 

The application site lies within the Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area which was designated 

in 1968. There is no Conservation Area Appraisal for the City and Cathedral Conservation Area, but a 

character statement has been produced and adopted by the local planning authority which covers the 

Newland area. This statement notes the general character as being one of small scale brick buildings 

predominantly of 2-3 storeys high, medium to high solid-to-void ratios, with roofs generally pitched 

and gabled, with roof lines facing the road and covered with slate.  

The conservation area includes key listed and unlisted buildings. The surrounding roof-scape consists 

of mainly traditional roof forms. The variation in roofline along with the range of architectural styles 

creates a high quality townscape. 

The site itself includes the former parish hall, the former school building and Stokes Warehouse. The 

former parish hall (St Martins) dates from 1923 and is located on the junction of Beaumont Fee and 

Park Street to the north west of the site. The former hall, which is of architectural merit, designed to 

address its prominent corner position within the surrounding townscape, makes a strong positive 

contribution to the street scene. The former school building to the west of the site, which fronts 

Beaumont Fee, sits slightly back from the road.  It is a Victorian red brick building of considerable 

architectural merit with fine architectural detailing and is a prominent building within the street scene. 

The Stokes Warehouse building is located to the north east of the site on the corner of Park Street and 

Mint lane. In contrast to the former hall and school building which conform to the general scale and 

storey heights of the area, the warehouse building is four storeys in height.  The building’s simple form 

reflects its former use. It is a key building within this part of the conservation area, which shows the 

historic development of this area, being one of a small number of industrial buildings which survive, 

as an example of the former industrial character near the city centre. 

Overall, all three buildings form an important group of non-designated heritage assets which make a 

strong positive contribution to the street scene and the character, appearance and significance of the 

Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area.  

 

Impact of the scheme 

There are several aspects of the proposal to consider - the impact of the proposed alterations to 

both Stokes Warehouse and the former school building, the partial demolition of the former parish 

hall and the impact of the proposed new five storey blocks, including the link buildings, on the 

character and appearance and significance of the conservation area. 

 

Alterations to Stokes Warehouse, the former school and parish hall 

Stokes Warehouse sits in a prominent position on the corner of Park Street and Mint Lane. It is a 

building of considerable townscape merit as highlighted above and makes a strong positive 

contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area. It’s simple architectural form 

44



reflects its former use. The proposal is to demolish the existing roof structure and replace it with a 

two storey glazed extension with metal cladding, taking the height of the building above the 

proposed adjacent five storey blocks. The proposed removal of the roof structure is regrettable and 

would, in our view, have an adverse impact on the building’s simple architectural form and 

composition and result in the loss of historic fabric. Furthermore, the proposed extension, would 

appear as an incongruous addition to the skyline, which would not sit harmoniously in the 

surrounding townscape, by virtue of its scale, mass and design.  

Overall the proposed alterations to the warehouse would neither preserve or enhance the character 

and appearance of the conservation area nor make a positive contribution to local character or 

distinctiveness and are therefore harmful to the overall significance of the conservation area.   

As outlined above, the former school is a building of townscape merit which makes a positive 

contribution to both the street scene and the character and appearance of the conservation area. 

The current scheme includes the alterations to the windows on the Beaumont Fee elevation and 

several interventions at roof level including the insertion of dormer windows, balconies, and an 

extension to the rear. In our view, the proposed alteration to four existing windows on the principal 

façade would alter the simple architectural composition of the building and the newly inserted 

floors, which would be visible behind the proposed fenestration, would be visually intrusive further 

detracting from the composition of the principle facade. Similarly, the proposed insertion of 

windows and balconies would alter the simple roof form of the building and in our view, would be 

visually intrusive and incongruous. Overall, the proposals as outlined above would detract from the 

street scene and the character and appearance of the conservation area. 

As previously advised, the proposed partial demolition of the former parish hall would be harmful to 

the character and appearance of the conservation area.  The planning application does not provide 

any clear justification for demolition of the rear part of the hall, nor provides any convincing 

evidence as to why this part of the building cannot be retained and re-used.   

 

New Development 

The proposed new blocks are of five storeys with flat roofs, in a mixed palette of material which 

includes brick, cladding, and aluminium and are linked by a central glazed atrium. Overall the 

proposed blocks make limited reference to the prevailing character and appearance of the 

conservation area, particularly in terms of their scale/storey height, or their architectural design and 

form, and in our view, do not respond appropriately to their context or sit harmoniously within the 

street scene. 

In particular, when viewed from Beaumont Fee, the proposed blocks would form an uncharacteristic 

and stark backdrop to the former parish hall and school building, appearing out of scale, dominating 

and competing with its neighbours (no photomontages of this view appear to have been submitted 

as part of the application).   

Overall the proposed five storey blocks would neither preserve nor enhance the character and 

appearance of the conservation area and are therefore harmful to  its overall significance.   

 

Policy 

As the application affects a conservation area, the statutory requirement within Section 72 (1) of the 

45



Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 is for your authority to pay special 

attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area 

when making your decision.  The courts have held that any harm should be given “considerable 

importance and weight”.   

Your authority should aim to achieve the objective of sustainable development which means 

development that achieves social, economic and environmental gains. Conservation of the historic 

environment is recognised as one of the 12 core principles of sustainable development in the NPPF. 

The importance attached to significance with respect to heritage assets is also recognised by the 

Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and in guidance, including The Planning 

Practice Guidance.  The NPPF defines significance as ‘The value of a heritage asset to this and future 

generations because of its heritage interest'. That interest may be archaeological, architectural, 

artistic or historic. 

 Significance can be harmed or lost through development and any harm or loss to significance 

‘should require clear and convincing justification’ (paragraph 132, NPPF).  

 Paragraph 131 of the NPPF, reminds us that in determining planning applications, local planning 

authorities should take account of: 

the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting them 

to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 

the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 

communities including their economic vitality; and 

the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 

distinctiveness 

Paragraphs 63-65 are concerned with raising standards of design and we refer you to these and 

paragraph 137 concerned with conservation areas.  In line with paragraphs 132 and 134 of the NPPF 

it will be for the determining authority to consider the justification put forward for this scheme in 

the form proposed, and to balance all planning matters, including public benefit afforded by this 

proposal, and affording the required weight to heritage matters as set out in the Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 Act and the NPPF.   

We draw your attention to Paragraph 135 NPPF which states that the effect of an application on the 

significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the 

application. In weighing applications that affect directly or indirectly non designated heritage assets, 

a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the 

significance of the heritage asset. 

 

Position 

We advise, the scheme would cause a high level of less than substantial level of harm to the overall 

significance of the Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area.  

In the context of the previously approved scheme, we believe that the current scheme would have a 

greater adverse impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area. In particular we 

believe that the proposed alterations to Stokes Warehouse which involves the demolition of the roof 

structure and raises the height of the building above the proposed five storey blocks is particularly 

46



harmful as outlined above.  

It will be for your authority to weigh all planning considerations and our advice above in determining 

the application, in line with Government legislation, policy and guidance concerned with the historic 

environment. 

 

Recommendation 

Historic England has concerns regarding the application on heritage grounds. 

as we believe the current proposal would cause a high level of less than substantial harm to the 

significance of the conservation area. We consider that the issues and safeguards outlined in our 

advice need to be addressed in order for the application to meet the requirements of paragraphs 

128,131,132,134, 135 and 137 of the NPPF. 

Notwithstanding the harm elsewhere, we believe that the scheme would be significantly improved 

by the removal of the proposed two storey roof extension to Stokes Warehouse and therefore 

recommend that the application is amended accordingly to reflect our advice.If the application 

remains unchanged, Historic England objects to the application on heritage grounds. 

In determining this application you should bear in mind the statutory duty of section 72(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas. 

Your authority should take these representations into account and seek amendments, safeguards or 

further information as set out in our advice. If, however, you propose to determine the application 

in its current form, please treat this as a letter of objection, inform us of the date of the committee 

and send us a copy of your report at the earliest opportunity. 

 

Please contact me if we can be of further assistance. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Rose Thompson 

Assistant Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas 

E-mail: rosemary.thompson@HistoricEngland.org.uk 

 

 

 

 

47



On that basis then, the County Council will not be seeking an education contribution from this 

proposed development.  

 

Kind regards,  

 

Robbie Bonner  

Asset Manager 

Corporate Property 

 

Lincolnshire County Council l County Offices l Newland l Lincoln l LN1 1YL 

 

Tel: 01522 554577 Mobile: 07464980717 email: robbie.bonner@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

 

This e-mail may include legally privileged information and may contain confidential information intended only for the use of 

the addressee. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination of 

information contained herein, together with the distribution or copying of this e-mail, is strictly prohibited. If you have 

received this e-mail in error, please notify me by return e-mail. Thank you. 

 

48

mailto:robbie.bonner@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

49



 

50



 

 

Consultee Comments for Planning Application 
2017/0617/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0617/FUL 
Address: Warehouse Mint Lane Lincoln Lincolnshire 
Proposal: Demolition of single storey hall building and entrance link. Conversion of existing 
parish hall and school buildings, extension and conversion of existing warehouse and erection 
of two, 5 storey buildings to accommodate a total of 138 new residential studios with 
associated external alterations and central glazed atrium link. 
Case Officer: Lana Meddings 
Consultee Details 
Name: Ms Catherine Waby 
Address: St Mary's Guildhall, 385 High Street, Lincoln LN5 7SF 
Email: lincolncivictrust@btconnect.com 
On Behalf Of: Lincoln Civic Trust 
Comments 
OBJECTION - We base our objections on the scale of the whole project and in particular the 
height of the building which replaces the Church Hall, the two additional storeys to be added 
to the existing warehouse and the overall size and footprint of the building to be built of the 
existing car park on Mint Lane. The area is right for development but the sheer size of the 
project is too great as it removes all open space from the site. Furthermore, the application 
does not have a Heritage statement for the buildings and no consideration has been given to 
the additional traffic in Mint Lane and Park Street that will be generated. We are also 
concerned by the number and nature or the proposed occupancy being students being very 
close to the 'Age' Concern building and next to a major night club (Home) in the City. 
 

 

 

 

51



Neighbour Comments  

 

Comments for Planning Application 2017/0617/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0617/FUL 
Address: Warehouse Mint Lane Lincoln Lincolnshire 
Proposal: Demolition of single storey hall building and entrance link. Conversion of 
existing parish hall and school buildings, extension and conversion of existing 
warehouse and erection of two, 5 storey buildings to accommodate a total of 138 
new residential studios with associated external alterations and central glazed atrium 
link. 
Case Officer: Lana Meddings 
Customer Details 
Name: Mrs Valerie Wilkinson 
Address: 25 Lee Rd Lincoln 
Comment Details 
Commenter Type: Member of the Public 
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:This proposed development is unnecessary, as the city is awash with 
student accommodation, much of it, empty.The area is extremely congested, with 
traffic at a standstill, not only at peak periods. 
If the provision is for 'luxury' flats, then many of the students will have cars, with no 
provision for parking, as far as I can see on the plans. 
The air pollution in that area is already over the limit at busy times -I believed the 
government when they said the plan was to improve air quality, as it is responsible 
for ill health and premature deaths. 
There is too little consideration given to protecting the rich heritage that we have in 
Lincoln. Yet another ugly block does nothing to enhance it. Developers care little for 
tradition, or the future, as profit is their business. 
I would also like to point out that Beaumont Fee has a huge problem with drug and 
alcohol addicts living on the streets, next door to the proposed development. 
 

Comments for Planning Application 2017/0617/FUL 
Application Summary 
Application Number: 2017/0617/FUL 
Address: Warehouse Mint Lane Lincoln Lincolnshire 
Proposal: Demolition of single storey hall building and entrance link. Conversion of 
existing parish hall and school buildings, extension and conversion of existing 
warehouse and erection of two, 5 storey buildings to accommodate a total of 138 
new residential studios with associated external alterations and central glazed atrium 
link. 
Case Officer: Lana Meddings 
Customer Details 
Name: Mr Dave Andrew 
Address: 9 St Andrews Clsoe Lincoln 
Comment Details 

52



Commenter Type: Member of the Public 
Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application 
Comment Reasons: 
Comment:I am strongly in favour of this plan since the area as it is looks old and 
tired and is an area to be avoided. I would however suggest that both blocks are 6 
storeys in height and the ground floor be allocated for commercial use such as 
cafe's, offices, shops or other services. I would suggest this with all such schemes 
for student accomodation of this scale, because it encourages non-students to visit 
the area and there is therefore no risk of it becoming 'ghettoized 

53



This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2017/0586/OUT 

Site Address: Land At Poplar Avenue/Beevor Street, Lincoln  

Target Date: 7th September 2017 

Agent Name: Liz Lake Associates 

Applicant Name: Mr Tom Blount 

Proposal: Erection of two and three storey buildings to accommodate a 
mix of office, laboratory and higher end workshops as part of 
Phase 2 of Lincoln Science and Innovation Park (Outline) 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
Outline planning permission is sought for the principle of development to erect two and 
three storey buildings to accommodate a mix of office, laboratory and higher end 
workshops as part of Phase 2 of Lincoln Science and Innovation Park. All matters are 
reserved.  
 
The Lincoln Science and Innovation Park was founded in 2012 as a joint venture between 
the University of Lincoln and the Lincolnshire Co-op. It is allocated as a strategic 
employment site within the City of Lincoln in the Local Plan.  
 
The application site is located to the west of Poplar Avenue and north of Beevor Street 
adjacent to the existing Science and Innovation Park buildings.  
 
Site History 
 
2010/0446/RN, a renewal of permission 2006/0792/F for Phase I of Lincoln Science and 
Innovation Park this planned for the erection of 7 two storey office buildings with 
associated car parking areas. The principle of developing this area was established and 
subsequent development has come forward on the back of this masterplan. Most recently 
the 2015 application (2015/0802/F) for the Boole Technology Centre has come forward, in 
line with the established parameters. 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 16th August 2017.  
 
Policies Referred to 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: 
Policy W8: Safeguarding Waste Management Sites 
 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan: 
Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy LP5: Delivering Prosperity and Jobs 
Policy LP26: Design and Amenity 
Policy LP31: Lincoln’s Economy Development  
 
Issues 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 

55

Item No. 3b



Design 
Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage  
Contaminated Land 
Air Quality and Sustainable Transport 
External Plant Noise 
External Lighting 
Construction/Demolition Impacts 
Highways 
Archaeology  
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Lincolnshire Police 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincoln Civic Trust 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Environment Agency 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincolnshire County Council – 
Education  

 
Comments Received   

 
Guy Hird - IDB 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Anglian Water  

 
Comments Received  
 

 
Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address                                                                                  

 
Mrs Helen Lloyd 

 
Hestia House, Edgewest Road, Lincoln. LN6 7EL  
 

 
Mr Simon Dodd 

 
EMR Group  
 

 
Two letters of objection have been received from local businesses. The areas of concern 
are: 

56



 

 encroachment of potentially more sensitive uses ever closer to the metal processing 
plant on Beevor Street 

 potential for conflict to arise between existing site and the amenity of future 
occupiers of the proposed development 

 acoustic screening of the site is not clear 

 disturbance during the construction phase  

 changes to access arrangements during the construction phase  
 
Consideration 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
 
Policy W8: Safeguarding Waste Management Sites of the Lincolnshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan states that: 
 
The County Council will seek to safeguard existing and allocated waste management 
facilities from redevelopment to a non-waste use and/or the encroachment of incompatible 
development unless: 
 

 alternative provision in the vicinity can be made in accordance with the 
Development Plan; or 

 it can be demonstrated that there is no longer a need for a waste facility at that 
location. 

 
Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 
At the heart of the strategy for Central Lincolnshire is a desire to deliver sustainable 
growth; growth that is not for its own sake, but growth that brings benefits for all sectors of 
the community - for existing residents as much as for new ones. 
 
When considering development proposals, the Central Lincolnshire districts of West 
Lindsey, Lincoln City and North Kesteven will take a positive approach that reflects the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning 
Policy Framework. The districts will always work proactively with applicants to find 
solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure 
development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in Central 
Lincolnshire. 
 
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan will be approved 
without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date 
at the time of making the decision, then the appropriate Council will grant permission 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether: Any 
adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework 
taken as a whole; or Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should 
be restricted. 
 
Policy LP5: Delivering Prosperity and Jobs 
 

57



The Central Lincolnshire authorities will, in principle, support proposals which assist in the 
delivery of economic prosperity and job growth to the area. 
 
Strategic Employment Sites (SES) 
 
The Policies Map identifies Strategic Employment Sites, as listed below, which are 
reserved for B1, B2 and B8 Uses. The presumption will be for the Strategic Employment 
Sites to meet the needs for large scale investment that requires significant land take. Small 
scale and/or piecemeal development that prevents the delivery of large scale investment 
will be refused. 
 
Any non-B class uses will only be supported where the applicant can demonstrably show 
that it is ancillary to the effective functioning of the Strategic Employment Site. 
 
Proposals for the development of Strategic Employment Sites should preferably be 
progressed through a masterplan prior to or alongside a planning application. 
 
Policy LP26: Design and Amenity 
 
All development, including extensions and alterations to existing buildings, must achieve 
high quality sustainable design that contributes positively to local character, landscape and 
townscape, and supports diversity, equality and access for all. 
 
Development proposals will be assessed against the following relevant design and 
amenity criteria. 
 
Design Principles 
 
All development proposals must take into consideration the character and local 
distinctiveness of the area (and enhance or reinforce it, as appropriate) and create a sense 
of place. As such, and where applicable, proposals will be required to demonstrate, to a 
degree proportionate to the proposal, that they: 
 
a. Make effective and efficient use of land; 
 
b. Maximise pedestrian permeability and avoid barriers to movement through careful 
consideration of street layouts and access routes; 
 
c. Respect the existing topography, landscape character and identity, and relate well to the 
site and surroundings, particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing, form and plot 
widths; 
 
d. Not result in the visual or physical coalescence with any neighbouring settlement; 
 
e. Not result in ribbon development, nor extend existing linear features of the settlement, 
and instead retain, where appropriate, a tight village nucleus; 
 
f. Incorporate and retain as far as possible existing natural and historic features such as 
hedgerows, trees, ponds, boundary walls, field patterns, buildings or structures; 
 
g. Incorporate appropriate landscape treatment to ensure that the development can be 
satisfactorily assimilated into the surrounding area; 

58



 
h. Provide well designed boundary treatments, and hard and soft landscaping that reflect 
the function and character of the development and its surroundings; 
 
i. Protect any important local views into, out of or through the site; 
 
j. Duly reflect or improve on the original architectural style of the local surroundings, or 
embrace opportunities for innovative design and new technologies which sympathetically 
complement or contrast with the local architectural style; 
 
k. Use appropriate, high quality materials which reinforce or enhance local distinctiveness, 
with consideration given to texture, colour, pattern and durability; 
 
l. Ensure public places and buildings are accessible to all: this should not be limited to 
physical accessibility, but should also include accessibility for people with conditions such 
as dementia or sight impairment for example. 
 
Amenity Considerations 
 
The amenities which all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and buildings 
may reasonably expect to enjoy must not be unduly harmed by or as a result of 
development. 
 
Proposals should demonstrate, where applicable and to a degree proportionate to the 
proposal, how the following matters have been considered, in relation to both the 
construction and life of the development: 
 
m. Compatibility with neighbouring land uses; 
 
n. Overlooking; 
 
o. Overshadowing; 
 
p. Loss of light 
; 
q. Increase in artificial light or glare; 
 
r. Adverse noise and vibration; 
 
s. Adverse impact upon air quality from odour, fumes, smoke, dust and other sources; 
 
t. Adequate storage, sorting and collection of household and commercial waste, including 
provision for increasing recyclable waste; 
 
u. Creation of safe environments. 
 
Similarly, proposals for development adjacent to, or in the vicinity of, existing 'bad 
neighbour' uses will need to demonstrate that both the ongoing use of the neighbouring 
site is not compromised, and that the amenity of occupiers of the new development will be 
satisfactory with the ongoing normal use of the neighbouring site, taking account of criteria 
m to u above. 
 

59



Policy LP31: Lincoln’s Economy Development proposals for Lincoln should support the 
strengthening of Lincoln’s economy, contributing toward the delivery of objectives as set 
out in the Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034. 
 
In principle, development proposals will be supported where they: 
 
a. seek to enhance the overall offer that Lincoln provides in terms of the range and quality 
of employment uses, including skills and innovation; 
 
b. support and enhance Lincoln’s role as a key destination for tourism and leisure; 
 
c. maintain and enhance Lincoln’s status as a significant provider of retail services; 
 
d. protect and enhance the quality, attractiveness, character and assets of Lincoln, and the 
City Centre in particular, as a place to visit, work and live; 
 
e. support and enhance boating activities on the Brayford Pool and/or the focus of the 
Brayford Pool and Lincoln’s waterways for cultural, leisure and educational development, 
provided it does not detract from their open character. 
 
Principle of Development and Site Allocation 
 
The site is allocated as a Strategic Employment Sites, identified as E2 Lincoln Science 
and Innovation Park. These sites are reserved for B1, B2 and B8 Uses. The presumption 
will be for the Strategic Employment Sites to meet the needs for large scale investment 
that requires significant land take. Any non-B class uses will only be supported where the 
applicant can demonstrably show that it is ancillary to the effective functioning of the 
Strategic Employment Site. 
 
Design of the Development 
 
The application is in outline with all matters reserved but an indicative layout has been 
developed as part of the submission. This is to demonstrate that the overall quantum of 
development is appropriate and can be accommodated when taking into account all the 
site constraints. This is essentially a masterplan for the site in accordance with the 
preference set out in Policy LP5 for Strategic Employment Sites to be progressed through 
a masterplan prior to or alongside a planning application. 
 
The buildings would predominantly be two storeys with some three storey feature sections 
at key focal points within the site. The total amount of development would have a 
combined floor area of approximately 120,000m2.  
 
It is considered that the heights and mass of the buildings would be in keeping with the 
buildings already converted and developed on Phase 1 of LSIP as well as the university 
accommodation in the wider area. The buildings are positioned in a north-south alignment. 
This allows the properties to face onto Poplar Avenue and continue the alignment 
established by Phase 1. 
 
The appearance and final design of the individual buildings will be assessed at reserved 
matters stage. The details submitted with the application are for illustrative purposes only, 
however they do demonstrate that buildings of the scale proposed can be designed in 

60



such a way to build on the character of buildings already in the area whilst also delivering 
contemporary architecture.  
 
In order for Phase 2 to flow from the existing development it is considered important that 
the landscaping and hard paving has continuity. This could be secured by condition.    
 
Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage 
 
The preferred method of surface water disposal for a development of this size would be to 
a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) with connection to sewer seen as the last option. 
The surface water strategy submitted with the planning application relevant to Anglian 
Water doesn’t contain sufficient information at this stage to show that a sustainable system 
is possible. However a condition could be attached to the consent to ensure that such 
details are submitted before development commences on site and in any case each 
individual application at Reserved Matters stage would need to demonstrate the drainage 
solution for each building.  
 
Lincolnshire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority have also requested that a 
surface water drainage design be secured by condition should consent be granted.  
 
Contaminated Land 
 
The applicant has submitted a contaminated land assessment as part of the outline 
application. The report advises that further intrusive investigation would be required as the 
proposals develop. As such, it would be necessary for any consent to have a number of 
conditions attached to ensure this work is carried out prior to the next stage of 
development.  
 
Highways 
 
The planning application is supported by a Framework Travel Plan which has generally 
been accepted by the Highways Authority. The framework gives an overarching plan which 
all subsequent applications would need to adhere to, this would enable the scheme to 
maximise opportunities for travel other than in the private car.  
 
To support this the Highways Authority have requested a condition to request the 
construction of an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing point on Ruston Way. It is considered 
that such a request would be appropriate given the increase in pedestrian footfall between 
the site and the city centre. The Highways Authority have requested this be prior to the 
commencement of development, however it is considered reasonable that this be secured 
prior to the occupation of the building/reserved matters application on site, as up until that 
point there would be no increase on the existing pedestrian movement from the site. The 
Highways authority have raised no other concerns in respect of the application. 
 
Environmental Impacts 
 
Air Quality and Sustainable Transport 
 
Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed development, when considered in isolation, 
may not have a significant impact on air quality, the numerous minor and medium scale 
developments within the city would have a significant cumulative impact if reasonable 
mitigation measures are not adopted.  

61



 
The NPPF seeks to promote and enable sustainable transport choices and, in doing so, 
aims to protect and enhance air quality.  The proposed development would include a 
significant amount of off street parking and, therefore, it is recommended that the applicant 
be required to incorporate appropriate electric vehicle recharge points into the 
development which could be secured by condition.  
 

As well as road transport related pollution, heating and power plant can also be a 
significant contributor to poor air quality.  No detail is provided within the outline 
application as to how heating/power would be provided for the development and, 
therefore, it is recommended that details be secured by condition.  
 
External Plant Noise 
 
Due to the outline nature of this application, no information has been supplied regarding 
any external plant and/or equipment to be installed at the development and, as such, it is 
not possible to assess impact of noise from the proposed unit on neighbouring uses. 
Therefore these details should be secured by condition so that the impact can be 
assessed on each element going forward.  
 
External Lighting 
 
It would normally be expected that this type of development would include external lighting 
provision.  Due to this application being for outline consent, no lighting detail has been 
submitted with the application.  Therefore, to ensure that this matter is addressed at the 
reserved matters stage, a condition should be attached to any consent granted.  
 
Construction/Demolition Impacts 
 
Due to the close proximity of the proposed development to neighbouring sensitive uses, 
there is potential for problems due to noise, vibration and dust during the 
demolition/construction phase unless adequate control measures are put in place.   

 
Conflict with Neighbours 
 
Two letters of objections have been received from existing operators on Beevor Street 
concerned with a conflict between their operations and that of the proposed development. 
The proposed development would fall within the scope of Policy W8 of the Waste Local 
Plan which seeks to safeguard existing waste management facilities from encroachment 
from incompatible development. Similarly Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local 
Plan states that “proposals for development adjacent to, or in the vicinity of, existing 'bad 
neighbour' uses will need to demonstrate that both the ongoing use of the neighbouring 
site is not compromised, and that the amenity of occupiers of the new development will be 
satisfactory with the ongoing normal use of the neighbouring site” 
 
It is clear from the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan that this area is allocated for strategic 
employment development but the LPA agrees with both the County Council and the 
objectors that appropriate mitigation measures would need to be in place so as to not have 
a detrimental impact on the existing waste facility. Because the exact end users of LSIP 
Phase 2 are unknown at this stage it would seem appropriate to condition that an impact 
assessment be provided at Reserved Matters stage to ensure that any required mitigation 

62



measures such as acoustic fencing, boundary treatment or internal construction methods 
be incorporated into the development should such mitigation be deemed necessary.  
 
Archaeology 
 
A desk based assessment to evaluate the archaeological potential of the site has been 
submitted as part of the planning application. The site is located in what was a wetland 
environment until the drainage throughout the area in the 19th Century. The site has the 
potential to provide information regarding the nature and extent of the 
palaeoenvironmental resource of the area from the prehistoric to pre-drainage periods. 
The proposed development therefore has a moderate archaeological potential. Therefore 
should consent be granted a condition could be used to secure further investigation.  
 
Conclusion 
 
It is considered that subject to the conditions set out within this report the principle of 
development on this site to extend the current function of the Lincoln Science and 
Innovation Park would be acceptable. The proposed use would accord with the sites 
allocation as a Strategic Employment Site within the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and 
forms a strategic overview which future applications can be assessed against.  
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is Granted Conditionally.  
 
Conditions 
 
01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun either within three years  
02) The development to which this permission relates shall not be commenced until 

details of the reserved matters have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

03) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
plans. 

04) Surface water drainage scheme for the site,  
05) Standard Contaminated Land Conditions  
06) Construction environmental management plan  
07) Scheme for the provision of an electric vehicle recharge point  
08) Programme of archaeological work  
09) Noise impact assessment report to identify any mitigation measures that are 

necessary to minimise the impact of offsite uses to the proposed use.   
10) Prior to the installation of any stationary external plant or machinery on any plot, a 

noise impact assessment be submitted   
11) A scheme for the construction of an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing point on 

Ruston Way. 
12) Assessment of the offsite impact of all external lighting  
13) Carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment  

63



This page is intentionally blank.



Site Location Plan  
 

 
 
 
Site Layout  
 

 

65



Site Photos 
 

 
 

 
 

66



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

67



Consultee Comments 
 

 
 

68



 
 

69



 
 

70



 
 

71



 

72



 
 

73



 
 
 
 

74



 
 

75



 
 

76



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77



 

 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE  
POLICE HEADQUARTERS 
PO Box 999 
LINCOLN  LN5 7PH 
Fax:  (01522) 558128  
DDI:  (01522) 558292 
email  
john.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk 

 

 
Your Ref: App. 2017/0586/OUT 19th June 2017 
 
Letter ID: 275202 
 
Our Ref: PG// 
 
Development Team 
City Hall 
Beaumont Fee 
Lincoln  
Lincolnshire 
LN11 DF 
 

Re: Phase 2 Lincoln Science and Innovation Park – Poplar Avenue / Beevor Street, Lincoln  
(OUTLINE) 

 
Thank you for your correspondence and subsequent plans received 12th June 2017 
and the opportunity to comment on the proposed development. I have studied the 
online plans and would request that you consider the following points that if adhered 
to would help reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and 
sustainability of the living and learning residential environment for users of this 

development. 
 
Layout and Block Plan 
 
The overall master plan and generic layout of the site is that of an open and largely 
permeable development. The consequence is that heightened awareness and 
thought should be given to the shell and fabric of any building contained therein and 
specifically issues of access control and resilience of the building structures 
proposed. 
 
External doors 

The Secured by Design minimum requirement for all external door sets is PAS 
24.2016 (doors of an enhanced security). Depending on the eventual or intended use 
of specific units or parts of units the specification for doors and windows together with 
general security and access control measures may need to be of an enhanced 
nature. This will be subject to assessment against the level and type of materials and 
substances that may be contained within any laboratory or storage facility. 

 

Subject to this specification the advice and directions of our Force Counter Terrorism 
Security Advisors must be sought. 

78



CCTV System 

A comprehensive monitored CCTV should be included throughout the site with 
appropriate signage. Such a system could be remotely monitored at a central 
security location that does have 24 hour security cover unless 24 hour cover is 
provided at the new location. 

Should it be considered appropriate a police response monitored system to with 
installation to EN 50131-1, (PD6662 Scheme for the implementation of European 
Standards), or BS 8418 for a detector activated CCTV system. 
 
Signage. 
 
Effective use of directional and informative signage can do much to reduce the 
opportunity for any persons accessing the site and not knowing where they should 
be. Site maps and clear directions to a security office or reception will reduce any 
opportunity for unwarranted trespass on the site. 
 
Likewise an effective identity card/ badge system for all persons on the premises can 
significantly enhance security. 
 
Vehicle parking. 
 
Vehicle parking should ideally conform to the standards set out by the police 
service’s ‘Park-mark’ criteria for safer parking, whilst not a requirement for Secure by 
Design status it is a good standard to achieve. Vehicular access control by way of a 
barrier system intercom and proximity card and access control would be 
recommended into the courtyard parking provision. Parking can be a particular 
problem in this area and this would reduce the opportunity for uncontrolled parking 
and increase security provision. 
 
Use of Bicycles. 
 
Secure bicycle parking should be made available within an appropriate roofed 
building (with all round surveillance that is within view (no more than 100 metres) of 
occupied buildings or CCTV) with ground bolted cycle stands. Galvanised steel bar 
construction (min thickness of 3mm) filled with concrete – minimum foundation 
300mm with welded anchor bar. This facility should have adequate vandal resistant 
dedicated energy efficient lamps lighting during hours of darkness. 
www.bikeoff.org/design_resource . A design focussed and inviting cycle rack/shed 
would encourage safe and secure bike use where residents feel confident to leave 
their cycles. If this is not achieved evidence strongly supports that cycle use will be 
reduced and residents will find alternative means to store cycles, i.e. in rooms or 
corridors. 
 
Whilst there is a predominance of various styles of cycle racks within the overall 
University Campus many experience minimum or no use which is indicative of users 
not feeling confident that the existing provision does not meet the safety and security 
needs of users. 
 
I would recommend that consideration is given to this specific issue and systems 
such as a Secured by Design system; 

Cycle-Pod Street-pod Secure Cycle Stand  

Certificated to: 
Sold Secure Standard Silver   

79

http://www.bikeoff.org/design_resource


Certification held with Sold Secure No PCME/1114/1342 refers 
  
'Street-pod' is robust and secure cycle parking for public locations & sites where bike security is a 
concern.  
Only one lock is required to secure both bike wheels and frame.  Cyclist should use their own security 
rated D-lock to secure their bike to the Street-pod unit. 
 
Lockerpod SS Cycle Locker for business or home securing up to four bikes and manufactured in 

100% recycleable plastic to Sold Secure Gold Standard 
  
Lockerpod + Cycle Locker for business or home securing uo to four bikes manufactured in 100% 

recycleable plastic to Sold Secure Bronze Standard 
  
Certificated to: 
Sold Secure Standard when supplied with Sold Secure Gold ground anchor or locking point is used. 
Certification held with Sold Secure No PCME/1213/1301 and PCME/1213/1302 refers 
 

The effectiveness of any cycle storage or security system regardless of product is 
reliant on ensuring that natural surveillance and location of the facility is considered 
an important aspect of the overall plan. 

Lighting 

Lighting should be co-ordinated with an effective CCTV system and any light fittings 
protected against vandalism. The overall lighting scheme should be well considered 
and evenly distribute light avoiding dark shadows, provide good colour rendition, and 
not cause glare or light pollution and effectively support formal and informal 
surveillance within the block development and surrounding area. 

A good lighting system can be cost effective and ensure that there will be a witness 
to any intrusion. It should allow staff, students and visitors to feel secure and safe 
within their living environment. Importantly it should make intruders feel vulnerable 
and that there is an increased likelihood of being challenged. 

With regard to the lighting I would suggest that external lighting be low energy 
consumption lamps with an efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt. 
Secured by Design has not specified this type of security lighting for a number of 
years following advice from the institute of Lighting Engineers and police concerning 
the increase in the fear of crime ( particularly amongst the elderly) due to repeated 
PIR activations. Research has proven that a constant level of illumination is more 
effective at controlling the night environment.  
 
External lighting must be switched using a photo electric cell (dusk to dawn) with a 
manual override. 
 
Lighting (bulk head style) should be designed to cover all external doors. 

Landscaping 
 
Landscaping should not impede the opportunity for natural surveillance and must 
avoid the creation of areas of concealment.  Any landscaping should be kept to a 
maximum growth height of 1 metre.  Whilst any tree should be pruned to a minimum 
height of 2 metres, thereby maintaining a clear field of vision around the 
development.  Trees when fully grown should not mask any lighting columns or 
become climbing aids. 
 
Boundaries between public and what is private space should be clearly defined and 
open accessible spaces should not allow for any unintended purpose which may 
cause any form of anti-social behaviour or nuisance.   

80



 
Entrance. 

An integrated access system throughout the development using vandal proof 
resistant proximity readers (biometric swipe cards) would allow for any security 
issues following staff exclusions. Should consideration be given to the use and 
application of prevailing biometric and voice recognition technology this should be 
discussed with the CPDA/CTSA at the earliest opportunity? 

This area should be well illuminated and welcoming with the entrance area having a 
clear view of the approaches to the entrance. 

Where a separate automatically opening door is required for disabled access, use 
should be made of a proximity reader and /or biometric swipe card technology. 

The use of an ‘air lock’ system whereby two sets of automatic doors are used, the 
first opening will allow a visitor through with the provision to control sighted access 
from the reception or by remote camera / intercom system. In such a environment it 
is not uncommon for unwanted access to be gained by way of ‘follow through’ access 
placing staff and students at risk of crime and anti-social behaviour. 

Windows 

All windows and glazing must incorporate at least one pane of laminated glass to a 
minimum of 6.8 mm or glass tested to BS EN356:2000 Glass in building, Security 
glazing – resistance to manual attack to category P1A. All easily accessible windows 
must be to PAS24:2016 or their equivalent verified standard. 

Window restrainers should be included on all accessible window sets. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or 
clarification. 

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract. 
Neither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the 
advice given.  However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for 
crimes to be committed. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
John Manuel 
Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor 
John.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81

mailto:John.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk


UD-3479-2017-PLN 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
REFERENCE: 2017/0586/OUT 
DEVELOPMENT: Erection of two and three storey buildings to accommodate a mix of office, 
laboratory and higher end workshops as part of Phase 2 of Lincoln Science and Innovation 
Park (Outline) 
LOCATION: Land at Beevor Street / Poplar Avenue, Lincoln 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the 
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board district. 
 
The Board Objects in Principle to any development in flood plain (Zones 2 and 3). However it 
is up to City of Lincoln Council as the planning Authority grant planning permission. It is 
noted that a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy are included in the Application 
that contains appropriate mitigation. 
 

Comment and information to Lincolnshire CC Highway SUDs Support 
Where Surface Water is to be directed into a Mains Sewer System the 
relevant bodies must be contacted to ensure the system has sufficient 
capacity to accept the additional Surface Water. The  
Documents included indicate Anglian Water have been approached for a attenuated 
discharge of 6.5l/s. 
 
 
Regards 

 
Guy Hird 
Engineering Services Officer 
 
Witham First District Internal Drainage Board 
Witham Third District Internal Drainage Board 
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board 
North East Lindsey Drainage Board 
J1 The Point, 
Weaver Road, 
LINCOLN, 
LN6 3QN. 
01522 697123 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



Neighbour Comments  

 

 
 

83



 

84



Application Number: 2017/0572/FUL 

Site Address: Land To The Rear Of 60 To 72 Chelmsford Street  Lincoln, 
Lincolnshire, LN5 7LL 

Target Date: 28th July 2017 

Agent Name: Stem Architects 

Applicant Name: Tim Clark Limited 

Proposal: Erection of 6no. two storey dwellings. Provision of 9no. parking 
spaces and associated external alterations to the front 
elevations of Nos. 70a, 70b & 70c Chelmsford Street (REVISED 
PLANS). 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
Site Location 
 
The application site is situated in an area of land that is surrounded on all sides by residential 
development within the Park Ward area of the city. To the north is Portland Street, to the 
east is Trollope Street, to the south is Chelmsford Street and to the west is Sincil Bank. 
 
Access to the site is currently taken from between Nos. 68 and 70 Chelmsford Street and 
to the south of No. 16 Trollope Street. The former serves the existing properties within the 
north western corner of the site (Nos. 70a, 70b and 70c); and the latter serves a commercial 
premises located to the east of the site. 
 
Description of Development 
 
The proposals are for six further dwellings which would abut the existing dwellings within 
the site, which were granted planning permission under reference 2002/0047/F. The central 
three dwellings would project forward of the remainder and incorporate a higher roof to the 
southern side to accommodate rooms in the roof. The roof of the remaining dwellings would 
be the same as the existing dwellings. In addition to this, the projecting façade of the existing 
dwellings would be refaced to match the proposed façades. 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 4th July 2017. 
 
Issues 
 
In this instance the main issues to consider are as follows:- 
 
1) The Principle of the Development; 
2) The Design of the Proposals and their Visual Impact; 
3)  Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity; 
4) Sustainable Access, Highway Safety and Traffic Capacity; 
5) Other Matters; and 
6) Planning Balance. 
 
  

85

Item No. 3c



Policies Referred to 
 
Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy LP2 The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy LP3 Level and Distribution of Growth 
Policy LP13 Accessibility and Transport 
Policy LP14 Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk 
Policy LP16 Development on Land Affected by Contamination 
Policy LP26 Design and Amenity 
Policy LP29 Protecting Lincoln’s Setting and Character 
Policy LP36 Access and Movement within the Lincoln Area 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Lincolnshire Police 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Environment Agency 

 
Recommends Conditions 
 

 
  

86



Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Mrs Eve Harrison 23C Sincil Bank 
Lincoln 
LN5 7TJ  

Miss V Maw & Mr D Tomlinson 60 Chelmsford Street 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN5 7LL 
       

Mrs Sandra Claughton 64 Chelmsford street 
Lincoln 
Ln5 7ll  

Guy Hird Witham First District Internal Drainage Board 
Witham Third District Internal Drainage Board 
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board 
North East Lindsey Drainage Board 
J1 The Point, 
Weaver Road, 
LINCOLN, 
LN6 3QN. 
      

Mr Phil Harris 16 Trollope Street 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN5 7LR 
   

Mr + Mrs Calam 8 Trollope Street 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN5 7LR 
                               

 
Consideration 
 
1) The Principle of the Development  

 
a) Relevant Planning Policies 
 
i) Sustainable Development and Housing Supply 
 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70(2) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) is a material 
consideration in determining planning applications. Framework paragraph 215 indicates that 
due weight should be given to relevant policies in the development plan according to their 
consistency with the Framework i.e. the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given. 

87



 
The development plan comprises the recently adopted Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (the 
Plan) and during its examination the policies therein were tested for their compliance with 
the Framework. 
 
Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) outlines the 
following in relation to the principle of development:  
 
"At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running through both 
plan making and decision taking. 
 
For decision taking this means (unless material considerations indicate otherwise): 
 

 approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without 
delay; and 

 where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, 
granting permission unless: 

 any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a 
whole; or 

 specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.  
 
In terms of sustainable development, Paragraph 7 of the Framework suggests that there 
are three dimensions: economic, social and environmental. “These dimensions give rise to 
the need for the planning system to perform a number of roles: 
 

 an economic role – contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right 
places and at the right time to support growth and innovation; and by identifying and 
coordinating development requirements, including the provision of infrastructure; 

 a social role – supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by providing the 
supply of housing required to meet the needs of present and future generations; and 
by creating a high quality built environment, with accessible local services that reflect 
the community’s needs and support its health, social and cultural well-being; and 

 an environmental role – contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built 
and historic environment; and, as part of this, helping to improve biodiversity, use 
natural resources prudently, minimise waste and pollution, and mitigate and adapt to 
climate change including moving to a low carbon economy.” 

 
Meanwhile, at the heart of the Core Planning Principles within the Framework (Paragraph 
17) is the expectation that planning should:- 
 

“proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the 
homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the 
country needs. Every effort should be made objectively to identify and then meet the 
housing, business and other development needs of an area, and respond positively to 
wider opportunities for growth” 

 
  

88



Turning to Local Plan Policy, Policy LP1 of the Plan supports this approach and advocates 
that proposals that accord with the Plan should be approved, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
In terms of the spatial dimension of sustainability, proposals need to demonstrate that they 
contribute to the creation of a strong, cohesive and inclusive community, making use of 
previously developed land and enable larger numbers of people to access jobs, services 
and facilities locally, whilst not affecting the delivery of allocated sites and strengthening the 
role of Lincoln (Policy LP2). Meanwhile, Policy LP3 sets out how growth would be prioritised 
and Lincoln is the main focus for urban regeneration. 
 
The relatively recent adoption of the Local Plan ensures that there is a very clear picture of 
the options for growth in Central Lincolnshire. 
 
The Framework expects LPAs to have a 5 year supply of deliverable sites (para. 49) that 
provide for a full range of market and affordable housing, with an additional buffer of 5%. 
The buffer should be increased to 20% for authorities who have persistently under delivered 
against their targets and, although there is some debate regarding what constitutes 
"persistent under delivery", the view is taken that the Council does not fall within this 
category. Sites with planning permission contribute towards this supply but Councils must 
also identify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations for growth, for years 
6-10 and, where possible, for years 11-15 (para. 47). The supply can contain an allowance 
for windfall sites under certain criteria (para. 48). 
 
ii) Flood Risk 
 
The second bullet point of Paragraph 14 is relevant as the policy with respect to flood risk 
is a restrictive policy. Moreover, the Framework sets out a strategy for dealing with flood risk 
in paragraphs 93-108 inc. which involves the assessment of site specific risks with proposals 
aiming to place the most vulnerable development in areas of lowest risk and ensuring 
appropriate flood resilience and resistance; including the use of SUDs drainage systems. 
 
Moreover, Paragraph 100 requires that “inappropriate development in areas at risk of 
flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk”.  The 
Framework therefore advocates a sequential approach to development and Paragraph 101 
indicates that new development should be steered to areas with the lowest probability of 
flooding.  It makes it clear that: 
 
“Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites 
appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower probability of flooding. The 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. A sequential 
approach should be used in areas known to be at risk from any form of flooding.” 
 
Paragraph 4 of the Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework provides 
further guidance on this matter and confirms that:- 
 
“Where a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment is not available, the Sequential Test will be 
based on the Environment Agency flood zones.” 
 
  

89



Paragraph 5 goes on to suggest that: 
 
“The overall aim should be to steer new development to Flood Zone 1. Where there are no 
reasonably available sites in Flood Zone 1, local planning authorities allocating land in 
local plans or determining planning applications for development at any particular location 
should take into account the flood risk vulnerability of land uses (see table 2) and consider 
reasonably available sites in Flood Zone 2, applying the Exception Test if required (see 
table 3). Only where there are no reasonably available sites in Flood Zones 1 or 2 should 
the suitability of sites in Flood Zone 3 be considered, taking into account the flood risk 
vulnerability of land uses and applying the Exception Test if required.” 
 
b) Housing Supply 
 
The Council’s current housing supply was considered as part of the preparation of the 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and evidence currently available to officers indicates that 
the Council is able to demonstrate a five-year supply, as such the local development plan 
policies can be considered up to date and there is not pressure for the Council to approve 
development which may not otherwise satisfy the three strands of the Framework as 
referred to above. 
 
The site is located within a sustainable position for housing to meet local demand. Moreover, 
the location is would offer the opportunity to promote sustainable transport choices (due to 
accessibility by cycle and walking routes) and connections to existing areas of employment, 
schools and other services and facilities. However, this is only one of the issues relevant to 
the consideration of sustainability. Moreover, officers recognise that the development would 
deliver economic and social sustainability directly through the construction of the 
development and indirectly through the occupation of the dwellings, spend in the City and 
retention/creation of other jobs due to the location of the development within the City. In 
addition, the erection of development in this location would not in itself undermine 
sustainable principles of development subject to other matters. It is still important to consider 
the wider sustainability of the development though as set out below. 
 
c) Flood Risk 
 
i) Whether the Site is Sequentially Acceptable 
 
In this instance, the site is located within Flood Zone 2 and there are potentially other 
available sites elsewhere within this Zone. Although the application is not supported by an 
assessment of other sites, the proposed location would result in the development of the 
remainder of a backland area that is partly used for commercial purposes and would enable 
an opportunity to rationalise the use of the land. As such, whilst there would not be strict 
compliance with the Sequential Test required by Paragraph 101 of the Framework, the 
regeneration of the area would outweigh any policy conflict in terms of the availability of 
other sites. In such circumstances the Exception Test required by Paragraph 102 should be 
applied. 
 
  

90



ii) The Exception Test 
 
If one can satisfy the Sequential Test then development must demonstrate that it provides 
wider community benefit to meet the overall requirements of sustainable development. The 
benefits to the community would be evidently intended to include the need to avoid social 
and economic blight but also make a positive contribution to the environment.  
 
As will be referred to in greater detail elsewhere, the benefits of providing the proposed 
dwellings in a sustainable location would result in a direct improvement in terms of the 
removal of a commercial ‘non-conforming use’ and the use of an access to that use. What 
is more, the external fabric of the existing dwellings within the site would be improved 
alongside the proposed dwellings and the dwellings would add visual interest to the area 
with gap views into the site. Very much on balance, officers are therefore of the opinion that 
the proposals would outweigh the flood risk implications associated with increasing the 
number of residential units and therefore persons at risk from flooding. The proposals would 
therefore be in accordance with the requirements of the first part of the Exception Test in 
the Framework (Paragraph 102). 
 
Part two of the Exception Test relates to the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) which should be 
submitted in support of development and indicates that development should be safe for its 
lifetime and not increase flood risk elsewhere. The Flood Risk Assessment submitted with 
the application is compliant with the Framework as it includes mitigation that would be 
appropriate for its context (identical to that of the existing dwellings). In addition, the 
Environment Agency does not object. Consequently, the proposals would be in accordance 
with Paragraphs 102 and 103 of the Framework, as they would not result in unacceptable 
risk to life from inundation. 

 
d) Summary on this Issue 
 
In the context of the above, the proposals would offer benefits to economic and social 
sustainability through the spend by new residents and jobs created/sustained through 
construction and the location of the development respectively. There would also not be harm 
relating to the flood risk implications of development, so there would not be conflict with 
environmental sustainability. 
 
2) Sustainable Access, Highway Safety and Traffic Capacity  
 
a)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
The impacts of growth are enshrined in the Core Planning Principles of the Framework 
(Paragraph 17), which expects planning to actively manage this growth “to make the fullest 
possible use of public transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant development in 
locations which are or can be made sustainable”. As such, Paragraph 35 requires that: 
“developments should be located and designed where practical to [amongst other things] 
give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, and have access to high quality public 
transport facilities; and should be located and designed where practical to create safe and 
secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians, avoiding 
street clutter and where appropriate establishing home zones". 
 

91



A number of Local Plan Policies are relevant to the access, parking and highway design of 
proposals. In particular, the key points of Policy LP13 are that “all developments should 
demonstrate, where appropriate, that they have had regard to the following criteria: 
 
a) Located where travel can be minimised and the use of sustainable transport modes 

maximised; 
b) Minimise additional travel demand through the use of measures such as travel 

planning, safe and convenient public transport, walking and cycling links and 
integration with existing infrastructure; 

c) Should provide well designed, safe and convenient access for all, giving priority to the 
needs of pedestrians, cyclists, people with impaired mobility and users of public 
transport by providing a network of pedestrian and cycle routes and green corridors, 
linking to existing routes where opportunities exist, that give easy access and 
permeability to adjacent areas” 

 
There are also transport measures referred to in Policy LP36, which more specifically refers 
to development in the ‘Lincoln Area’, the key measures add to and reinforce the criteria 
within Policy LP13. As such, they are intended to reduce the impact upon the local highway 
network and improve opportunities for modal shift away from the private car. In particular, 
development should support the East West Link in order to reduce congestion, improve air 
quality and encourage regeneration; and improve connectivity by means of transport other 
than the car. 
 
Paragraph 32 of the Framework suggests that the residual cumulative impacts of the 
development would need to be severe for proposals to warrant refusal. This is reinforced by 
Policy LP13 of the Local Plan which suggests that only proposals that would have “severe 
transport implications will not be granted planning permission unless deliverable mitigation 
measures have been identified, and arrangements secured for their implementation, which 
will make the development acceptable in transport terms.” 
 
b)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
i) Parking 
 
Vehicular traffic on Chelmsford and Trollope Streets are only permitted to travel eastwards 
and northwards respectively, so there is potential for vehicles to park to either side of the 
street. The proposed development would be accessed via Chelmsford Street, with vehicle 
access through the site to a private parking area outside of the existing and proposed 
dwellings. The proposal would provide 9 off-street parking spaces, which equates to one 
space per dwelling. Although greater provision may be possible with reconfiguration of the 
frontage spaces of the dwellings, it is unusual within this part of the city for properties to 
have their own dedicated parking. Therefore this should be seen as a benefit of the scheme. 
This approach would be consistent with other recent applications considered by the Council. 
Moreover, Members will recall that proposals for 14 apartments at Blenheim Terrace, 
recently considered at the June Planning Committee, only included seven parking spaces.  
 
Whilst it is clear that the streets adjacent to the application site are very well parked, the 
area is not subject to a Residential Permit Scheme so without a coherent approach to the 
control of parking it would be difficult to object to the proposals upon this basis that they may 

92



add to parking on-street, particularly as the site is located close to the city centre and other 
means of transport are possible. 
 
iii) Access from Chelmsford Street 
 
Concerns have been expressed regarding the use of the existing access from Chelmsford 
Street, particularly the proximity of parked cars to the access and resultant visibility from this 
access to the pavement, as well as beyond cars. In terms of the former, the highway 
authority has not raised any concerns regarding issues of visibility from the site or noted any 
incidences of accidents involving the access. In light of this, officers consider that it would 
be difficult to raise concerns regarding the intensification of the use of this access. 
 
In terms of the latter, whilst there is potential for the visibility to be restricted by cars parked 
in the street, this is no different to other accesses located in this part of the city and by their 
nature the narrowing of carriageways encourages vehicles to slow down. Notwithstanding 
this, the Highway Authority has not objected to the proposals. 
 
iii) Access from Trollope Street 
 
Concerns have also been expressed regarding the use of the existing access from Trollope 
Street as an access to the site and the implications of this in terms of land stability, noise 
and disturbance and safety of other users of the access. However, the proposals would 
result in the vehicular access to the site being closed off at the perimeter of the site. This 
currently serves the commercial business situated to the east of the site and would only be 
retained for emergency purposes. The access route would therefore only remain in use for 
neighbouring residential properties. 
 
Overall, this change in circumstances would be a benefit to the locality as the number of 
access points in use would diminish. 
 
c) Summary on this Issue 
 
The provision of parking would not necessarily undermine sustainable travel choices as the 
site can be accessed by other means. Therefore, any harm caused to social sustainability 
would be minimal. 
 
3) The Design of the Proposals and their Visual Impact  
 
a)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
So far as this issue is concerned, as alluded to above, the proposals must achieve 
sustainable development and it is the social dimension of sustainability that relates to 
design. Moreover, Paragraph 7 of the Framework requires the creation of high quality built 
environment. In addition, the policy principles outlined in Paragraphs 17, 58, 60, 61 and 64 
of the Framework also apply. Moreover, the Framework states that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development and is indivisible from good planning. Design is to 
contribute positively to making places better for people (para. 56). To accomplish this 
development is to establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to 
create attractive and comfortable places to live and responding to local character and history 
(para. 58). It is also proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness (para. 60). 

93



 
At the local level, the Council, in partnership with English Heritage, undertook the Lincoln 
Townscape Appraisal (the LTA), which resulted in the systematic identification of 105 
separate “character areas” within the City. The application site lies within the Sincil Bank 
North Character Area. Policy LP29 refers to the LTA and requires that developments should 
“protect the dominance and approach views of Lincoln Cathedral, Lincoln Castle and uphill 
Lincoln on the skyline”.  
 
Policy LP26 refers to design in wider terms and requires that “all development, including 
extensions and alterations to existing buildings, must achieve high quality sustainable 
design that contributes positively to local character, landscape and townscape, and supports 
diversity, equality and access for all.” The policy includes 12 detailed and diverse principles 
which should be assessed. This policy is supported by Policy LP29 which seeks to protect 
Lincoln’s setting and character. 
 
b)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
The visual implications of the proposals for the site are key to the assimilation of 
development into its context and the creation of high quality built environment. 
 
The arrangement of properties within the site would, by the very nature of the site, be in a 
backland form, which would not necessarily be akin to the prevailing character within the 
Sincil Bank North Character Area, which is primarily of perimeter blocks. However, the inner 
area of this block is fairly substantial and has already been partially developed for housing 
with the terrace of three properties, which are proposed to be altered as part of the 
application. 
 
In light of this, in terms of design and layout, the grain and appearance of the development 
would allow for a successful integration with the surrounding townscape, primarily relating 
to the character of the existing development, including façade treatment which would 
provide visual interest. Moreover, the form of the proposed dwellings is largely consistent 
with those original dwellings except for the external appearance, which would be visible only 
from the site itself and the neighbouring properties but would, nonetheless, be of interest 
from a visual perspective. Officers are therefore satisfied that the development proposed 
would not be harmful to the character of the area for such reasons. The proposals would 
therefore be development that would not harm the social sustainability of the locality as 
required by the Framework. 
 
Notwithstanding this, it would be necessary to control the final look of the accesses to the 
dwellings, to ensure that they appear more recognisable as doorways and windows; and  
 
4)  Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity 
 
a)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
More specifically, Chapter 6: Delivering a wide choice of quality homes states that LPA’s 
should ‘identify and bring back into residential use empty housing and buildings’ (para 51) 
however should consider the case for ‘…resisting inappropriate development of residential 
gardens, for example where development would cause harm to the local area’ (para 53). 
 

94



In terms of national policy, the Framework suggests that development that results in poor 
design and/or impacts upon the quality of peoples’ lives would not amount to sustainable 
development. Consequently, the implications of both are key to the consideration of the 
acceptability of the principle of development within a given site. Moreover, the Framework 
(Paragraph 9) sees “seeking positive improvements in the quality of the built, natural and 
historic environment, as well as in people’s quality of life” as being important to the delivery 
of sustainable development, through “replacing poor design with better design” and 
“improving the conditions in which people live” amongst others. Furthermore, in its Core 
Principles, the Framework states that development should seek to secure ‘high quality 
design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and 
buildings’ (para 17, point 4), whilst also encouraging the effective use of land by ‘reusing 
land that has been previously developed, provided that it is not of high environmental value. 
 
Policy LP26 of the Plan deals with the amenities which all existing and future occupants of 
neighbouring land and buildings may reasonably expect to enjoy and suggests that these 
must not be unduly harmed by, or as a result of, the development. There are nine specific 
criteria which must be considered. The policy is in line with the policy principles outlined in 
Paragraphs 17, 59 and 123 of the NPPF. Indeed, Paragraph 123 of the Framework suggests 
that “decisions should aim to…avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts 
on health and quality of life as a result of new development”. 
 
b)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals upon Neighbouring Properties 
 
The site is bound by residential properties to all sides so it is necessary to consider different 
implications in each relationship. 
 
i) Overlooking / Loss of Privacy 
 
Due to the internal layout and external form of the buildings, officers are satisfied that there 
would not be harm caused to the amenities of the occupants of neighbouring properties in 
terms of overlooking or a loss of privacy. Moreover, the roof windows situated on the building 
would be at a high level so would not permit individuals to look out and down toward 
neighbouring properties. 
 
Meanwhile, in terms of other windows, where they are within 21m of the rear elevation of 
neighbouring properties, the floor plan has been designed to include physical set-backs 
within the relevant rooms so that occupiers are not able to stand in the window and look out. 
The views from these windows would therefore be further back directly opposite and oblique 
in other directions (particularly toward Trollope Street). There are also no windows facing 
directly east which would look toward the properties in Trollope Street. 
 
Notwithstanding this, officers accept that there would be overlooking into neighbouring 
gardens but equally officers also appreciate that these gardens are already overlooked by 
existing properties in light of the fact that the site is located within a dense urban situation. 
As such, it is considered that the additional overlooking that would result would not lead to 
harm that would warrant refusal of the application. 

95



 
 
Above is a section of most eastern properties (looking west), which illustrates how the 
internal set back from the window would restrict outlook from first floor windows that are not 
proposed to be obscure glazed. 

 

 
 
Above is a section of the central terraced properties (Looking East), which illustrates how 
the roof windows would restrict outlook from second floor windows. It also shows where first 
floor windows would be obscure glazed. 
 
  

96



ii) Scale, Massing and Light 
 
The roof of the proposed dwellings would be similar to those of the existing dwellings to the 
west of the site, apart from the central three dwellings which would have a slightly larger 
form to the south due to the incorporation of a further floor and front projection. However, 
the roof form would be identical facing north. In light of the fact that the roof pitches away 
from the boundary, it is considered that the proposals would not be overbearing upon the 
properties situated on Portland Street or result in a harmful loss of light to the gardens of 
those properties. 
 
In addition, given that the proposed dwellings would be positioned along the boundary of 
the site with the properties at Trollope Street, there would be some loss of light and 
overbearing impacts upon the occupiers of those dwellings immediately alongside the site. 
However, officers consider that the impact would not be sufficiently harmful to warrant 
refusal of the application given that the building is not conventionally two-storeys in height 
to the eaves and utilises the roof to reduce the overall scale of the building. Furthermore, 
the building is oriented ever so slightly on a NNE/SSW axis so any loss of light / 
overshadowing would be to the latter part of the day in the summer months of the year. 
 
iii) Noise and Disturbance 
 
Given the dense arrangement of dwellings located within the locality and the parked nature 
of the streets it is considered that the introduction of further dwellings within the internal area 
of the perimeter block would not result in noise and disturbance that would be sufficiently 
harmful to warrant the refusal of the application. Moreover, the noise created by vehicle 
movements associated with the additional properties would not result in a significant change 
in site circumstances from that already experienced by existing properties by the roads 
surrounding the site. Similarly, the noise and disturbance associated with the occupancy of 
the properties would not in itself be any more harmful than noise and disturbance created 
by existing neighbouring properties. 
 
In addition, in terms of the impacts of the construction of the development, due to the close 
proximity to neighbouring properties, there is potential that noise from the construction 
phase of the development could affect occupants of these properties. As such, officers 
agree with the Council’s Pollution Control Officer that the construction and delivery hours of 
the development should be controlled. 
 
iv) External Lighting  
 

The Pollution Control Officer has also recommended that a scheme for external lighting is 
controlled by a planning condition to avoid problems off site if not designed and installed 
appropriately. This would enable the site to be lit, in accordance with Lincolnshire Police’s 
comments, but not in a harmful manner. 
 
v) Future Occupancy 
 
Given that there are concerns from the occupiers of neighbouring properties in relation to 
the implications of further dwellings in the locality, it is important to note that the properties 
would be subject to the article 4 Direction so the owner(s) of the properties would need to 
apply for permission for the properties to be HMOs in the future. At this point, officers would 

97



be able to consider whether the comings and goings to the rear of these properties could 
create additional unwanted and harmful noise and disturbance to a number of independent 
people living nearby. 
 
c)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals upon Properties Within the Site 
 
Officers consider that the relationship of the proposed parking and the existing and proposed 
dwellings within the site would not result in harm to the residential amenities that the 
occupants of the properties would expect to enjoy. The lack of a significant degree of 
useable outdoor amenity space associated with the dwellings is a concern but not one which 
officers feel would warrant the refusal of this application on its own or in conjunction with 
other matters. Moreover, a small area is proposed to be provided to the frontage of each 
new dwelling like the existing dwellings within the site so the approach would be consistent 
with approaches to amenity previously accepted. The site is also close to the Sincil Drain 
which would be an asset for future occupiers. 
 
Notwithstanding this, in order to ensure that satisfactory provisions are in place to serve the 
development, it would be necessary to agree how refuse will be stored within the site. 
 
d) The Planning Balance 
 
Taking all the above in to account, it is considered that the proposed development of the 
site could be accommodated in the future in a manner that would not cause unacceptable 
harm.  
 
5) Other Matters 
 
a) Land Contamination 

 
i)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
As with air quality, Paragraph 109 of the Framework also refers to contamination. Paragraph 
120 expands upon this and suggests that “to prevent unacceptable risks from pollution and 
land instability, planning policies and decisions should ensure that new development is 
appropriate for its location. The effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, 
the natural environment or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area or 
proposed development to adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account. 
Where a site is affected by contamination or land stability issues, responsibility for securing 
a safe development rests with the developer and/or landowner.”  
 
In addition Paragraph 121 states that planning decisions “should also ensure that:  
 

 the site is suitable for its new use taking account of ground conditions and land 
instability, including from natural hazards or former activities such as mining, 
pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation including land 
remediation or impacts on the natural environment arising from that remediation; 

 after remediation, as a minimum, land should not be capable of being determined 
as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990; and 

 adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is 
presented.” 

98



 
ii)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
The Council’s Scientific Officer has advised that planning conditions should be imposed to 
deal with land contamination due to the previous uses of the site. This is reasonable in the 
context of the proposals. 
 
b) Drainage 
 
i)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
The Framework sets out a strategy for dealing with flood risk in paragraphs 93-108, including 
the use of SUDs drainage systems. Meanwhile, Policy LP14 of the Plan is also relevant as 
it reinforces the approach to the drainage of sites. 
 
ii)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
Concerns have been raised regarding the discharge of sewerage in terms of capacity but 
there is no evidence to suggest that the proposals could directly lead to a problem or could 
not be accommodated by onsite or offsite drainage. However, in light of concerns by 
residents, it would be appropriate to include a planning condition to control the foul and 
surface water drainage for the site. 
 
c) Air Quality 
 
i)  Relevant Planning Policy 
 
Paragraph 109 of the NPPF introduces the section in relation to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural environment. Given that the site is located adjacent within the 
Air Quality Management Areas (declared by the Council due to the likely exceedance of the 
national air quality objectives for nitrogen dioxide and particulate matter), this section of the 
NPPF should be given great weight. It states that “the planning system should contribute to 
and enhance the natural and local environment by…preventing both new and existing 
development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely 
affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability”. 
 
Paragraph 120 sets the scene and refers to development being “appropriate for its location”. 
It goes on to say that “the effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, the 
natural environment or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area or proposed 
development to adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account.” Paragraph 
124 refers in more detail to the implications of the location of development within an Air 
Quality Management Area and requires that “planning decisions should ensure that any new 
development in Air Quality Management Areas is consistent with the local air quality action 
plan”. 
 
Meanwhile, Local Plan Policy LP13 also refers to air quality and requires that “all 
developments should demonstrate, where appropriate, that they…ensure allowance is 
made for low and ultra-low emission vehicle refuelling infrastructure.” 
 
 

99



ii)  Assessment of the Implications of the Proposals 
 
As the development could have an impact upon air quality within the wider city, officers will 
seek to provide electric vehicle recharging points through the development. This can be 
secured by planning condition. Notwithstanding this, officers are satisfied that the magnitude 
of the development would not be such that there would be direct harm caused by air pollution 
to neighbouring properties. 
 
d) Human Rights Act 
 
On a slightly different issue, a resident has referred to the Human Rights Act and suggested 
that the scheme would conflict with Protocol 1 Article 1 and Article 8 of the Act. The former 
states that: 
 

“Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions. No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public 
interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law and by the general 
principles of international law.” 

 
Meanwhile, the latter refers to the right to respect for private and family life and suggests 
that:  

“Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 
correspondence.” 

 
In light of the assessment carried out in relation to all of the matters relevant to the 
application, officers find it difficult to support either notion as, subject to the provisions made 
within the application and planning conditions suggested, the development of the site would 
not prejudice the ability of residents rights to experience the above.  
 
6) Planning Balance 
 
A conclusion whether a development is sustainable is a decision that has to be taken in the 
round having regard to all of the dimensions that go to constitute sustainable development. 
 
In this case, officers consider that the development would deliver economic and social 
sustainability directly through the construction of the development and indirectly through the 
occupation of the dwellings, spend in the City and retention/creation of other jobs due to the 
location of the development within the City. The location of additional residential 
development in a sustainable location would not undermine this position. 
 
With satisfactory control over the materials of the development and the fine details of the 
layout of the site and dwellings, the implications upon the character of the area and the 
impact of the development upon the general amenities would not have negative 
sustainability implications for the local community, as they would lead to a development that 
would be socially sustainable. Meanwhile, subject to controls in relation to drainage, electric 
vehicle recharging points and contaminated land the proposals would not make a negative 
contribution in terms of environmental sustainability. 
 
Thus, assessing the development as a whole in relation to its economic, social and 
environmental dimensions and benefits, officers are satisfied that the proposals could be 

100



considered as sustainable development and would accord with the Local Plan and 
Framework. 
 
Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
Yes. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The proposals would offer benefits to economic and social sustainability through spend by 
new residents, jobs created/sustained through construction. In addition, there would 
residential properties that would be subject to council tax payments. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None. 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development required by the National Planning 
Policy Framework would apply to the proposals as there would not be conflict with the three 
strands of sustainability that would apply to development as set out in the planning balance. 
Therefore, there would not be harm caused by approving the development. As such, it is 
considered that the application should benefit from planning permission for the reasons 
identified in the report and subject to the conditions outlined below. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes, subject to an extension of time. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The development should therefore only be granted subject to the planning conditions 
covering the matters listed below:- 
 
Standard Conditions  
Timeframe for Permission; and 
Approved Plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
Samples of Materials and final design of entrances to the properties; 
External Lighting and Drainage Schemes; and 
Contaminated Land. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented 
Internal set-backs, obscure glazing and high level windows implemented; 

101



Electric Vehicle Recharging Points provided; 
Provision of parking spaces and amenity spaces; and 
Closure of access from Trollope Street (except for emergency purposes); 
 
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
Development constructed in line with the Flood Risk Assessment; 
Construction and Delivery Hours; and 
No new windows allowed under permitted development regulations. 
 
Report by Planning Manager 

102



Plans 

 
Site Location Plan 

103



 
Proposed Block Plan 

 

104



 
Existing Front Elevation 

  

105



 
Proposed Front (South) Elevation 

 
 
 

 
Proposed Rear (North) Elevation 

106



 
 

 
East Facing Elevation 

 

 
West Facing Elevation 

107



Floor Plans 

 

 

108



 

 
 

109



Site Photographs 
 

 
View into access of site from Chelmsford Street 

 

 
View beyond gated access to site towards existing dwellings 

 

110



 
View west along Chelmsford Street towards site entrance 

 

 
View west into existing Trollope Street Access 

 

111



 
View northwest towards existing dwellings from southeastern corner of site 

 
View north in eastern area of site towards existing commercial premises 

 

112



 
View along eastern boundary of site with gardens of properties in Trollope Street 

113



This page is intentionally blank.



Consultation Responses Received 
 

For Revised Proposals - Residents 
 
Miss V Maw & Mr Tomlinson (60 Chelmsford Street) 
 
We wish to object to the revised planning permission. Our points of objection remain 
the same as those in our original objection (dated 26 June (published 28 June and 
contained in the documents section) and we refer you to that document with 
supporting photos, which sets out our full concerns. These have not changed and 
should be taken into account for objection purposes. 
 
Parking is inadequate. There are already parking issues and although there is an 
allowance for 1 car parking space per property, we believe it is unlikely that each 
property will only have 1 car in this day and age. 
 
We note that the revised plans show obscured glass on the second storey for the 
first 3 properties ( the middle 3 houses of the 9). All 6 properties should have 
obscure glass as should all of the roof windows. 
 
We are still of the opinion that access via Chelmsford Street and Trollope Street is 
unsafe. The photographs contained in our original representation show the access 
onto the road and we feel this is a threat to pedestrians and cars (and the proposed 
new residents who will struggle to see onto the road when coming out). We 
appreciate that vehicular access may not be provided along the Trollope Street 
entrance (and this should certainly be a planning constraint) but confirm we 
STRONGLY OBJECT to its use at all. Our original representation states our 
concerns if vehicular access be supplied. This would represent a serious risk to the 
occupants of Chelmsford Street and Trollope Street that use this. The biggest risk is 
definitely to our property given its proximity. Once again we would point out that not 
all of the development has legal rights to use this and it is only the 3 properties on 
the right which form part of the area which has the actual right of way. The block plan 
shows the access edged red on Trollope Street inferring it is owned by the 
developer, as per our original objection, this is owned by the residents of the 
neighbouring properties as shown in the Land Registry plan attached to our previous 
objection. We would like access to be prevented for pedestrian access too. We do 
not want any congregation down this alley way. There is no need for the new 
development to have any access down the Trollope Street access. Lack of lighting 
down this also poses a risk. However, additional lighting would cause disturbance. 
 
Please refer to our original representation to the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 
(adopted 2017) and its reference to its not allowing Lincoln's future development to 
exacerbate the City's traffic problems and the new Parking Strategy (September 
2014).  
 
Design and Appearance - the proposal allows very little space for landscaping and 
we believe that it would lead to gross over-development of the site. The 
gardens/outside space are inadequate for the size of the houses and therefore 
people will congregate. 
 

115



Our Noise and disturbance concerns have not been allayed. We believe 6 properties 
will create more noise. The noise from the existing development at 70A B & C drifts 
to our property. We have to shut our windows at night as this is often noisy. There 
will also be disturbance caused by headlights from the additional cars. These will 
shine into the back of our property, particularly in the bedroom. There will also be 
additional car fumes coming into our house and garden. 
 
The development would cause loss of privacy and overlooking. The proposed site of 
development is at such an angle that this would impact on our privacy. Our yard will 
be overlooked by the top rooms of the new development, resulting in a serious 
invasion of our privacy. It appears as though there have been additional windows 
included in the revised plans. How will this impact on all of the neighbouring 
properties?  
 
Our original representation does indeed still stand and should be read in conjunction 
with this objection. We see the architects dealt with 3 objections previously but this is 
inaccurate. We are aware of at least 5 objections, including ours. Mrs Claughton's 
was not available to view online until only last week. Our objection was only available 
to view in documents and we are concerned that these points were not addressed 
previously due to people not being aware that we made these objections. 
 
Mrs Sandra Claughton (64 Chelmsford Street) 
  
I object strongly towards the dwellings being built as it would impact greatly on mine 
and my family's life the reasons are: 
Built directly at the back of my property. 
Loss of privacy. 
Less daylight coming in as house is very dark as it is. 
More noise in area. 
More traffic into area. 
Industrial traffic would be a problem due to fitting down our street as it is very tight for 
the emergency services. 
Noise from building work and traffic with it being so close to my property. Husband 
night worker would not be able to sleep during day.  
Health problems with my child having autism.  
Cause of structural damage to all our properties. 
Risk of flood I feel would be higher as our insurance is becoming harder to get due to 
the risk of sincil drain.  
Area over populated already 
Lighting at night would cause us disruption.  
Crime issues are a cause for concern.  
Loss of view from bedroom windows with the loss of the sight of cathedral.  
Think it may effect sale or rental of my properties.  
Being a terraced property we are very close this would just make it worse. Parking 
problems in area would be worse if tenants have visitors which is a massive problem 
already.  
Risk of how emergency services would get to properties behind me if ever fire was to 
start.  
Sewage disturbance would cause problems with damage to our sewage, also rats 
being disturbed which has increased recently due to building works recently Been 

116



done in our area. And would the applicant really want houses being built in there 
back garden because this person obviously doesn't know the area as we do which 
we have been there for over 20 years and know how hard it is with being 
overcrowded and over populated. 
We are already have buildings in the front of our house however they have always 
been there. I understand that new builds are built closely however this is not a new 
build area so the reason I brought that property was because I didn't have 
overlooking issues in the back. 
 

For Initial Proposals - Residents 
 
Miss. V. Maw and Mr. D. Tomlinson (60 Chelmsford Street) 

 
 

117



 
 

118



 
 

119



 
 

120



 
 

121



 
 

122



 
 

123



 
 

124



 
 

125



 
 

126



 
 

127



 
 

128



 
 

129



 
 

130



 
 

131



 
 
  

132



Mrs E. Harrison (23c Sincil Bank) 
 
My concern is parking that people will use the road rather than the parking area as it 
appears the access is restricted. 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Calam (8 Trollope Street) 
 
I am writing on behalf of my parents, Mr and Mrs Calam. My parents live at 8 
Trollope Street Lincoln and have just seen the plans for the proposed construction of 
six two storey houses. The plans are for the land to the rear of 60-72 Chelmsford 
Street Lincoln. My parents are both in their seventys and are very concerned the 
sixth proposed house (70i) will be right up to their boundary wall. They have a 
garden shed which is situated against the boundary wall. They are concerned the 
builders will need to erect scaffolding in their garden for a long period of time in order 
to construct the sixth property. This will mean their shed will have to be taken down 
and rebuilt after the construction is completed. They are wanting to know how the 
sixth property (70i) will be constructed with the boundary wall being there or if the 
wall will be taken down completely while the work is carried out. This is a big security 
issue for them. They are also worried about the loss of sunlight once the houses are 
built. They are not completely against the proposed plans just the sixth one property. 
 
Mr. P. Harris (16 Trollope Street) 
 
My objection is regarding the access to the site along the side of 16 Trollope Street. 
This is a narrow access with limited space for entry and egress. This access already 
causes issues with noise and disturbance inside the property when a vehicle uses it 
to access the yard. I do not feel that this access road has the correct substructure for 
regular use by motor vehicles. There have been collisions with my property you can 
clearly see the scrapes of wing mirrors. My car when parked outside my house on 
trollop street has previously been hit by a vehicle exiting the site. 
 

For Revised Proposals - Consultees 
 
Lincoln Civic Trust 
 
OBJECTION - This application falls under the heading of “back-yard” development 
and needs to be questioned as to its acceptability. We accept that there is, very 
obviously, a precedent already set by the existing houses (70a,b and c) in the space 
created behind the houses on Chelmsford, Trollope and Portland Streets but this 
application exploits this precedent and seeks to overdevelop the area. We are aware 
of the Sincil Bank Regeneration project and more houses in this area, could be seen 
as counter-productive to the aims of the project. The proposed houses do not appear 
to have any form of garden and there is no green space provision created by the 
project which in this area is sadly lacking. 
 
Furthermore, the access to the site from Chelmsford Street leaves a lot to be desired 
and that coupled with the very difficult parking situation and the cramped area for 
vehicle movements, this will lead to major problems in the area. 
 
  

133



For Initial Proposals - Consultees 
 
Environment Agency 
 
Thank you for your consultation of 6 June 2017 regarding the above application. 
 
Environment Agency position  
 
The submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has some inadequacies in terms of 
how climate change has been calculated and there is also inconsistency with land 
levels. However, after looking at our flood risk and land level data we consider the 
mitigation proposed in the FRA to be appropriate.  
 
The proposed development will only meet the requirements of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) if the following measure(s) as detailed in the submitted 
FRA are secured by way of a planning condition. The proposal is also subject to the 
flood risk sequential test, to be applied by your Authority.  
 
Condition 
The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) by Roy Lobley 
Consulting dated 1 June 17, including the following mitigation measures detailed 
within the FRA:  

 The floor level will be set at 5.06mODN as per the Flood Risk Assessment  

 The flood resilient construction used to a height of 300mm above the 
predicted flood level.  

 
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 
subsequently remain in place. 
 
Reason 
 
To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.  
 
Please note that our advice covers the risk of flooding from fluvial and tidal sources 
only and not that from ground water, drainage systems, reservoirs, canals or 
ordinary watercourses. Your Authority will need to be satisfied that the proposed 
development is in accordance with all flood risk requirements of the NPPF.  
 
Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters 
further, please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.  
 
Yours sincerely  
 
Nicola Farr  
Sustainable Places - Planning Advisor 
 
  

134



Internal Drainage Board 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within 
the Witham First District Internal Drainage Board area. 
 
The applicant is aware the development is in flood plain (Zones 2 and 3 on the 
Environment Agency flood map). It is noted that a Flood Risk Assessment is 
included in the Application that contains appropriate mitigation 
 
Comment and information to Lincolnshire CC Highway SUDs Support 
Where Surface Water is to be directed into a Mains Sewer System the relevant 
bodies must be contacted to ensure the system has sufficient capacity to accept the 
additional Surface Water. 
 
All drainage routes through the Site should be maintained both during the works on 
Site and after completion of the works. Provisions should be made to ensure that 
upstream and downstream riparian owners and those areas that are presently 
served by any drainage routes passing through or adjacent to the Site are not 
adversely affected by the development. 
Drainage routes shall include all methods by which water may be transferred through 
the Site and shall include such systems as “ridge and furrow” and “overland flows”. 
The effect of raising Site levels on adjacent property must be carefully considered 
and measures taken to negate influences must be approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Regards 
 
Guy Hird 
Engineering Services Officer 
 
 
Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood 
Authority) 
 
Written Response 
 
NO OBS - Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning 
policy guidance (in particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire 
County Council (as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has 
concluded that the proposed development is acceptable. Accordingly, Lincolnshire 
County Council (as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) does not 
wish to object to this planning application. 
 
Additional Email Correspondence between the planning application Case Officer and 
the Highway Authority Case Officer John Clifton 
 
Paul 
 
Just to confirm that the Chelmsford Street access alone would suffice. I would also have no objection 
to maintaining Trollope Street as an emergency access only despite the loss in parking provision. 

135



 
John 
 
From: Thompson, Paul (City of Lincoln Council) [mailto:Paul.Thompson@lincoln.gov.uk]  
Sent: 06 July 2017 15:52 
To: John Clifton 
Subject: RE: 20170572FUL 
 
Hi John, 
 
Thanks for your comments, as the Trollope Street access is currently indicated as being closed at this 
time, would you want them to amend the plan to open it or would utilising the Chelmsford Street 
access alone be okay? 
 
Let me know your thoughts. 
 
Kind regards, 
Paul Thompson 
Principal Planning Officer 

 
 
Lincolnshire Police 
 
Thank you for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed 
development.  
 
Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application in principle 
but would recommend that the attached recommendations are implemented. 
 
Building Regulations (October 1st 2015) provides that for the first time all new 
homes will be included within Approved Document Q: Security – Dwellings (ADQ). 
 
Approved document Q applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from 
change of use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and barns undergoing 
conversions into dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas. 
 
This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or 
apartments, communal doors to multi-occupancy developments and garage doors 
where there is a direct access to the premises. Where bespoke timber doors are 
proposed, there is a technical specification in Appendix B of the document 
that must be met. 
 
Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement and other easily accessible locations. 
 
The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24.2016 
(doors of an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for PAS 
23/24 and is published by Warrington Certification Laboratories).  
 
All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the 
ground must conform to improved security standard PAS24:2016. Window 
retainers should be provided on all windows that are accessible. 

136

mailto:Paul.Thompson@lincoln.gov.uk


 
Lighting 
 
Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors and be controlled by 
photoelectric cell (dusk to dawn) with a manual override.  The use of low 
consumption lamps with an efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is 
required; it is recommended that they be positioned to prevent possible attack.  
 
Bin Storage 
 
Internal communal bin and bicycle stores within blocks of flats must have no 
windows and be fitted with a secure door set that meets the same physical 
specification as ‘front door’ and specifically Section 2, paragraphs 21.1 to 21.6 and 
21.8 to 21.13. 
This will ensure that such stores are only accessible to residents. The locking system 
must be operable from the inner face by use of a thumb turn to ensure that residents 
are not accidentally locked in by another person. A bicycle store must also be 
provided with stands with secure anchor points or secure cycle stands. 
 
External bins stores and home composting containers (supplied to meet ‘Code for 
Sustainable Homes’ ‘Was 3’) should be sited in such a way that they cannot be used 
as a climbing aid to commit crime. 
 
Utilities 
 
In order to reduce the opportunities for theft by ‘bogus officials’ the utility meters 
should, where possible, be located to the outside of the dwelling at a point where 
they can be overlooked. This will negate the need for an official to enter the building 
in order to read a meter, which will in turn reduce the opportunity for distraction 
burglary. Where possible utility meters in multi occupancy developments should be 
located on the ground floor between access controlled 
doors (air lock system) so that access can be restricted to the meters  
 
Note 33.1: Where a utility provider refuses to provide external meters, and there is 
an obvious (historic) risk of distraction burglary within the location, the developer 
should consider an alternative supplier. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or 
clarification. 
Please refer to New Homes 2016 which can be located on 
www.securedbydesign.com  
Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.  
Neither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the 
advice given.  However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for 
crimes to be committed. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
John Manuel MA BA (Hons) PGCE Dip Bus. 
Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

137

http://www.securedbydesign.com/


This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2017/0741/HOU 

Site Address: 18 Garfield Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire 

Target Date: 30th August 2017 

Agent Name: Heronswood Design Ltd 

Applicant Name: Ms Tracey Footsoy 

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension. 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
The application is made by the City of Lincoln Council for a single storey side extension to 
18 Garfield Close. The application property is located on Ermine West, to the north of the 
City. The extension would replace an existing store and would provide wheelchair access 
and ground floor facilities for the existing tenants.  
 
The property is a two storey semi-detached property. 
 
Site History 
 
No Relevant Site History. 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 24th August 2017. 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
Policy LP26 Design and Amenity 
National Planning Policy Framework  
 
Issues 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
Public Consultation Responses 
 
No Responses Received. 
 
 

139

Item No. 3d



Consideration 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
 
Paragraph 56 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute 
positively to making places better for people. 
 
Paragraphs 63 and 64 are also key in highlighting that applicants should take the 
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it 
functions. Buildings and extensions should promote high levels of sustainability through 
good design and weight will be given to outstanding or innovative designs which help raise 
the standard of design more generally in the area. 
 
Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan adopted 2017 relates to design and 
amenity standards and requires that all development, including extensions and alterations 
to existing buildings, must achieve high quality sustainable design that contributes positively 
to local character, landscape and townscape, and supports diversity, equality and access 
for all. 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
With regard to visual amenity, the extension would be to the side of the property and set 
back approximately 1.9 metres from the existing front elevation. The roof would be pitched 
with the gable facing towards the side elevation. 
 
There is a need for the extension to be located in the proposed position in order to maximise 
the access arrangements and internal space for the existing occupants. In any case, the 
extension is positioned in the same location as the existing store, is single storey and set 
back from the existing front elevation. 
 
Having regard to the above, it is considered that the extension would be acceptable in terms 
of its impact on visual amenity. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
In terms of the impact on residential amenity, the extension would be positioned on the 
boundary with the neighbouring property No. 16 Garfield Close. There is an existing store 
which would be removed to accommodate the proposal. Whilst the extension would be 
slightly larger than the existing store with a pitched roof rather than the existing flat roof, I do 
not consider that the proposal would cause undue impact on the residential amenities of the 
occupants of No. 16 through loss of light or the creation of an overbearing structure. There 
are no windows proposed in the side elevation of the proposed extension and therefore 
privacy would be maintained between the two properties. 
 
It is not considered that there would be any further residential properties impacted upon by 
the proposal and it is therefore concluded that the extension is acceptable in terms of its 
impact on residential amenity. 
 
Impact on Highway Safety 
 
The Lincolnshire County Council as Highway Authority has assessed the application and 

140



has raised no objections to the proposal. It is not considered that the proposal would impact 
upon Highway Safety. 
 
Application Negotiated Either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
No. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None. 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed extension would not cause unacceptable harm to visual amenity, residential 
amenity or highway safety, in accordance with the relevant policies of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is Granted Conditionally 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 

with the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this consent, 

the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
drawings listed within Table A below. 

  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved 
plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the application. 

   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved 

plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
 
  None 

141



   
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented 
 
  None 
  
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
 
  None 
 
Table A 
 
The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings 
identified below: 
 

Drawing No. Version Drawing Type Date Received 

1517L/17/10a  Location Plan 4th July 2017 

1517L/17/13  Floor Plans - Proposed 4th July 2017 

1517L/17/14  Elevations - Proposed 4th July 2017 

 

142



Attachments for 18 Garfield Close 

 

Site Location/Block Plan 

 

143



 

Proposed Ground Floor Plan 

 

 

144



 

Proposed Front Elevation 

 

145



 

Proposed Side Elevation 

 

146



 

Proposed Rear Elevation 

  

147



 

 

148



 

149



This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2017/0711/HOU 

Site Address: 12 Webster Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire 

Target Date: 24th August 2017 

Agent Name: Heronswood Design Ltd 

Applicant Name: Ms Tracey Footsoy 

Proposal: Erection of single storey front and side extension 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
The application is made by the City of Lincoln Council for a single storey side/front extension 
to 12 Webster Close. The extension would provide wheelchair access and ground floor 
facilities for the existing tenants.   
 
The property is a two storey semi-detached property. 
 
Site History 
 
No relevant site history. 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 8th August 2017 
 
Policies Referred to 
 
Policy LP26 Design and Amenity 
National Planning Policy Framework  
 
Issues 
 
Impact on Visual amenity 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151

Item No. 3e



Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Mrs Rosalyn  Thompson-Hayes 11 Webster Close 
Lincoln 
LN67JD   

Mrs L Ramshaw 10 Webster Close 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN6 7JD 
     

 
Consideration 
 
Representations from the Consultation Process 
 
Representations have been received from No. 10 and No. 11 Webster Close as part of the 
consultation process. Both of these representations raise concerns with the loss of off street 
parking from the proposed extension. The occupants of No. 10 have also raised concern 
with regard to loss of light into a side window within their property. These issues are 
discussed in more detail later in this report. 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
 
Paragraph 56 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute 
positively to making places better for people. 
 
Paragraphs 63 and 64 are also key in highlighting that applicants should take the 
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it 
functions. Buildings and extensions should promote high levels of sustainability through 
good design and weight will be given to outstanding or innovative designs which help raise 
the standard of design more generally in the area. 
 
Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan adopted 2017 relates to design and 
amenity standards and requires that all development, including extensions and alterations 
to existing buildings, must achieve high quality sustainable design that contributes positively 
to local character, landscape and townscape, and supports diversity, equality and access 
for all. 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
With regard to visual amenity, the design and position of the extension is largely informed 
by the requirement for ground floor facilities which are needed to be accessed via a 
wheelchair.  
 
The extension would be positioned on the side of the property, projecting slightly beyond 
the bay window on the existing front elevation. The roof of the extension would be hipped to 
reflect that of the existing property. Notwithstanding its forward projection, I do not consider 
the extension would appear unduly prominent. There is a need for the extension to be 
located in the proposed position in order to maximise the access arrangements and internal 
space for the existing occupants. Having regard to the above, it is considered that the 

152



extension would be acceptable in terms of its impact on visual amenity. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
In terms of the impact of the extension on residential amenity, the extension would be 
900mm away from the boundary with the adjacent neighbouring property No. 10 Webster 
Close, at the closest point. The occupants of this neighbouring property have raised 
concerns with regard to residential amenity, in particular the impact of reduced light to their 
side window. The application property and No. 10 are angled away from each other which 
lessens any impact from the extension. Furthermore, the extension is single storey in height 
and would have a hipped roof to slope away from No. 10. It also appears that the side 
window in the neighbouring property serves a hallway and not a habitable room. 
Notwithstanding this, it is not considered that the extension would have an overbearing 
impact on this neighbour nor would it reduce light into the neighbouring property to an 
unacceptable degree. There are no windows proposed in the side elevation of the proposed 
extension and therefore privacy would be maintained between the two properties. 
 
It is not considered that there would be any further residential properties impacted upon by 
the proposal and overall the extension is acceptable in terms of its impact on residential 
amenity. 
 
Impact on Highway Safety 
 
The Lincolnshire County Council as Highway Authority has assessed the application and 
has raised no objections to the proposal. However, two representations have raised 
concerns with regard to the loss of off street parking as the extension would be located in 
an area that the tenant currently uses to park their cars/caravan. Whilst these concerns are 
acknowledged, there would still be parking available to the front of the property for at least 
1 car and it would be unreasonable to require the applicant to provide additional parking or 
refuse the application on that basis. It is therefore considered that the proposal would not 
be detrimental to highway safety or traffic capacity. 
 
Application Negotiated Either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
Yes - initial pre-application advice given. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None. 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed extension would not cause unacceptable harm to visual amenity, residential 
amenity or highway safety, in accordance with the relevant policies of the National Planning 

153



Policy Framework and Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is Granted Conditionally. 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 

with the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this consent, 

the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
drawings listed within Table A below. 

 
  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved 

plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the application. 
   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved 

plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
 
  None. 
   
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented 
 
  None. 
    
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
 
  None. 
     
 
Table A 
 
The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings 
identified below: 
 

Drawing No. Version Drawing Type Date Received 

1516L/17/11  Floor Plans - Existing 28th June 2017 

1516L/17/13  Floor Plans - Proposed 28th June 2017 

1517L/16/12  Elevations - Existing 28th June 2017 

1516L/17/14  Elevations - Proposed 28th June 2017 

1516L/17/10a  Location Plan 28th June 2017 

 

154



12 Webster Close Attachments 

 

 

Site Location Plan/ Block Plan 

 

155



 

Proposed Floorplan 

156



 

Proposed Front Elevation 

 

157



 

Proposed Side Elevation 

 

158



 

Proposed Rear Elevation 

View towards the application site (No. 12 Webster Close) 

159



 

Side of No. 12 Webster Close 

View towards No. 10 Webster Close 

160



 

Representations 

 

161



 

 

  

162



(Comments redacted to remove personal information) 

Comments for Planning Application 2017/0711/HOU 

Application Number: 2017/0711/HOU 

Address: 12 Webster Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7JD 

Proposal: Erection of single storey front and side extension 

Case Officer: null 

Customer Details 

Name: Mrs Rosalyn Thompson-Hayes 

Address: 11 Webster Close Lincoln 

Comment Details 

Commenter Type: Neighbour 

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning 

Application 

Comment Reasons: 

Comment:While I appreciate the need for the family to have the property adapted to 

accommodate their disabled child and her ongoing needs and requirements, I do have cause 

to raise concerns about parking issues which will arise as a consequence. 

There are on most days of the week up to 3 or 4 vehicles at the property, one of which is 

currently a caravan situated to the side of the property. The family do also have on 

occasions (relatively frequently) further visitors in their vehicles which do inhibit other 

vehicular access into the end of the cul-de-sac. 

Living opposite, I have at times found it a very tight squeeze to get my car on and off the 

front of my own property which we have converted to a double driveway which is served by a 

drop-kerb which has been in situ in excess of 20 years. 

My biggest concern is about where and how/in what manner the residents and their 

family/friends will park their vehicles once the extension is complete. It would seem to be 

less of an issue if the extension were to be at the rear of the property rather than to the side 

and front. 

163



This page is intentionally blank.



PLANNING COMMITTEE  13 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
CONSIDERATION OF CONFIRMATION OF TREE 
PRESERVATION ORDER 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

KIERON MANNING, PLANNING MANAGER 

 
 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

 To consider whether to formally confirm a temporary Tree Preservation Order 
made by the Planning Manager under delegated powers. The Order currently 
provides 6 months of temporary protection for the tree, but is required to be 
confirmed by the Planning Committee should it be considered that it is 
necessary provide long term future protection. 
 

2. Executive Summary     
 

 A Tree Preservation Order gives statutory protection to trees that contribute to 
the amenity, natural heritage or attractiveness and character of a locality. The 
Planning Development will take the necessary steps to ensure that the trees 
are protected in the longer term.  
 

 The making of any Tree Preservation Order is likely to result in further 
demands on staff time to deal with any applications submitted for consent to 
carry out tree work and to provide advice and assistance to owners and others 
regarding protected trees. This is, however, contained within existing staffing 
resources.  
 

 The making of Tree Preservation Orders reduces the risk of losing important 
trees, groups of trees and woodlands. It further allows the Council to protect 
trees that contribute to local environment quality.  
 

 The process of applying for work to protected trees allows for elected 
members, and members of the public to have an opportunity to comment on 
work to protected trees.  
 

3. Background 
 

 
 

The applicant submitted an application for works to fell a tree under the 
protection of a Tree Preservation Order in March of this year and in 
accordance with practice the site was visited by the Council’s Arboricultural 
Officer to assess the health and amenity value of the tree. At the site visit it 
was apparent that the tree was not in the position of the tree identified on the 
formal Tree Preservation Order documentation produced in 1978. Indeed there 
is no tree in this position and the tree which does exist on Stonefield Avenue, 
and which is the subject of the application, is some 10-12m to the south of the 

165

Item No. 4



tree plotted on the TPO. It is possible that this may have been a drafting error 
back in 1978 but we have had to assume that the tree in question – the one on 
the site – was not therefore covered by a Tree Preservation Order. The tree is, 
equally, not within a conservation area and therefore at the time of the site visit 
had no protection. The tree does however have an amenity value and as a 
consequence a temporary Tree Preservation Order has been placed upon it to 
give the control over its removal to the Council, by way of the Planning 
Committee.  
 
The situation is further complicated by the unadopted status of the northern 
part of Stonefield Avenue where the tree is located. Ordinarily a tree in such a 
location would be the responsibility of Lincolnshire County Council as the 
Highway Authority as a street tree but as a consequence of this part of the 
street being privately owned the responsibility for this tree rests with the owner 
of 27 Stonefield Avenue who has made the application to remove it. Liability for 
accidents, trips, root damage to services and so on rests with the individual 
owner. 
 
The temporary Tree Preservation Order was advertised locally for a period of 
28 days in accordance with the relevant legislation and objections were 
received from the owner of the tree and a petition was also received, signed by 
residents of nine houses on Stonefield Avenue.   
 

4. Consideration 
 

 Tree Preservation Order 154, 1 Individual Beech Tree – 27 Stonefield 
Avenue (adjacent to front wall), Lincoln.  
 
Members will appreciate that this is an unusual situation, both in terms of the 
tree not being the subject of the level of protection that we had assumed it was 
and also because of the liabilities that a tree in the street, that is privately 
owned, places on the owner. 
 
The tree is a beech and is a mature specimen with a crown that spreads 
between seven and nine metres from its centre. It is located within the non-
adopted footway of Stonefield Avenue and approximately two metres from the 
front boundary garden wall of No. 27. The tree extends over the non-adopted 
vehicular highway of Stonefield Avenue and has a crown that breaks 
approximately 2.1 metres above ground level, meaning that can currently 
represent an obstruction to higher vehicles in the highway. 
 
The applicant has sought the advice of a qualified structural engineer to assess 
the impact of the tree on the street in general and on No. 27 in particular and 
has also sought the advice of her own tree specialist. The advice of the 
structural engineer, based on a visual assessment, is that the tree has caused 
cracking to the brick built front garden wall of No.27 and has lifted and caused 
cracking to the tarmac pavement in the vicinity of the trunk. The structural 
engineer also raises concerns about the possible effects, either current or in 
the future, upon buried underground services within the footway and the road, 
which include gas, electricity, water and foul drainage.  
 
The applicants tree specialist proposes to fell the tree at the request of the 

166



applicant who “does not wish to be held responsible for the slip and trip hazard 
that the tree is now starting to pose.” The proposal would be to replace the tree 
with one of a smaller species. The report from the tree specialist does however 
contain within it, “favoured recommendations” which would be to retain the 
existing tree, lift the crown to give a clearance beneath of approximately 4-5 
metres, reduce the spread of the crown all round by 2.5 metres, thin the crown 
and remove branches to give clearance to two telephone lines. 
 
Your officers have considered in detail the information provided in support of 
the application and have visited the site to assess both the value of the tree 
and to assess the impact that the tree has on its surroundings. 
It is clearly a large and healthy tree that is a significant feature in the street. 
The cracking of the garden wall and the footpath may well be attributable to the 
roots of the tree but it is considered that this damage may be relatively easily 
repaired and at a reasonable cost when compared to the cost of felling and the 
loss of amenity value of the tree were it to be removed. Equally there would be 
no objection to the tree works favoured by the applicant’s tree specialist; crown 
lifting, crown thinning and some crown reduction.  
 
Members are therefore being asked to consider whether to place this tree 
under the protection of a Tree Preservation Order and if this considered to be 
appropriate to then make a decision on the applicants proposal to fell the tree. 
The advice from your officers, after detailed deliberations, is that the tree 
should be placed under the protection of a Tree Preservation Order, that 
consent to fell should be refused but that consent to undertake the crown 
lifting, thinning, etc. set out above should be granted.    
 

5.  Legal Implications 
 

5.1 
 
 
5.2 

Anyone who wishes to carry out works to the trees will require consent from the 
City Council first. 
 
The applicant would have a right of appeal, should the tree be placed under a 
Tree Preservation Order and consent to fell be refused. 
 

6. 
 
6.1 

Recommendation 
 
That the petition is received. 
 

6.2 It is recommended Members confirm the Tree Preservation Order and also 
confirm that the works of crown lifting, crown thinning and crown reduction are 
agreed. 

  
  
  
Lead Officer: Planning Manager 

Telephone (01522) 873551 
 
 

167



Tree Preservation Order 154, 1 No. Individual Beech Tree – 27 Stonefield Avenue 
(adjacent to front wall), Lincoln 
 
Map showing location of tree 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



 
 
 
 

 

169



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

170



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

171



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

172



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

173



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

174



 

175



This page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 16 August 2017
	3a Warehouse, Mint Lane, Lincoln
	Plans and Consultation for Warehouse Mint Lane (Healthy Hub)

	3b Land At Poplar Avenue/Beevor Street, Lincoln
	Poplar Avenue Beevor Strret Plans and Comments

	3c Land to the Rear of 60 To 72 Chelmsford Street  Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN5 7LL
	Rear 60-72 Chelmsford St - Photos & Plans
	Rear 60-72 Chelmsford St - Consultations

	3d 18 Garfield Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire
	18 Garfield Close Attachments

	3e 12 Webster Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire
	12 Webster Close Attachments

	4 Consideration of Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order

